
 

                         

 

 

 

                             

 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

TOWN COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

JUNE 15, 2022 

 

AGENDA PACKET 

 

1



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA JUNE 15, 2022 

              

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. APPROVAL OF SPECIAL TOWN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES FOR 

JUNE 1, 2022 – Page 5 

B. APPROVAL OF REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES FOR 

MAY 18, 2022 – Page 8 

C. APPROVAL OF REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES FOR 

APRIL 20, 2022 – Page 22 

D. APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN FOR 309 FIFTH AVE – Page 38 

E. APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN FOR 527 SUNSET BLVD – Page 48 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. DISCUSSION ON BREVARD COUNTY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES ALLOWING 

A SECOND KITCHEN FOR SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES – Page 84 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. DISCUSSION ON A BEACHFRONT DOG PARK – Page 95 

B. CONSIDERATION OF THE UPDATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH 

INDIALANTIC FOR FIRE-RESCUE DISPATCH SERVICES – Page 100 

C. DISCUSSION ON REVISIONS TO THE LANDSCAPE AND TREE ORDINANCE -

Page 104 
D. CONSIDERATION TO CLOSE TOWN HALL AT NOON ON FRIDAY, JULY 1ST – 

Page 112 
E. CONSIDERATION OF A TOURISM LAGOON PROJECT GRANT – Page 113 
F. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2022-01 ON LOW-SPEED 

VEHICLES – Page 114 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWN MANAGER REPORT – Page 122 

B. BUILDING DEPARTMENT REPORT – Page 123                                                                                                                    

C. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT REPORT – Page 126                                                                                                           

D. POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT – Page 127  

E. FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT – Page 134 

F. FINANCE DEPARTMENT REPORT – Page 137  

  

ACTION ITEMS – Page 152  
 

A. COCOA BEACH DOCUMENTS ON DROWN ZERO STATIONS – Page 157 

 

2



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

JUNE 15, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

AGENDA 
 

The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 
on Wednesday, June 15, 2022, in the Community Center 

to address the items below 
 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton  
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 
 
Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The following 
sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further motion by the 
Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in proceedings 
of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a method 
for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town 
Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

1. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Hoover 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

3



4. Public Comments 
After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.   

 
5. Approval of the Agenda  

 
6. Presentation 

 
7. Consent Agenda  

A. Approval of Special Town Commission Meeting minutes for June 1, 2022 
B. Approval of Regular Town Commission Meeting minutes for May 18, 2022 
C. Approval of Regular Town Commission Meeting minutes for April 20, 2022 
D. Approval of the site plan for 309 Fifth Ave 
E. Approval of the site plan for 527 Sunset Blvd 

 
8. Old Business  

A. Discussion on Brevard County’s Code of Ordinances allowing a second kitchen for 
single-family residences 
 

9. New Business 
A. Discussion on a beachfront dog park  
B. Consideration of the updated Interlocal agreement with Indialantic for fire-rescue 

dispatch services  
C. Discussion on revisions to the landscape and tree ordinance 
D. Consideration to close Town Hall at noon on Friday, July 1st.  
E. Consideration of a Tourism Lagoon Project Grant 
F. Consideration and approval of Ordinance 2022-01 on low-speed vehicles 

 
10. Staff Reports  

A. Town Attorney Report 
B. Town Manager Report  
C. Town Clerk Report  
D. Departmental Reports 

1. Building Department  
2. Public Works Department  
3. Code Enforcement  
4. Police Department  
5. Fire Department  
6. Finance Department  

 
11.    Town Commission Comments   

A. Review of Commission Action Items 
B. General Comments 

 
12.   Adjournment 

4



Town of Melbourne Beach 
SPECIAL TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER, 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
 

 

Commission Members: 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton  

Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 

Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Appointed Conflict Counsel Morris Richardson 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



1. Call to Order 
 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted Roll Call  
 

Commission Members Present   

Mayor Wyatt Hoover     

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton     

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie    

Commissioner Corey Runte    

Commissioner Marivi Walker  

 

Commission Members Absent   

None 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Appointed Conflict Counsel Morris Richardson 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.   

 
 Ali Dennington 
 413 Surf Rd 
 
Ali Dennington stated she has to file a trial brief within thirty days and although she 
believes the Commission should amend the Code.  The only thing that could stop this 
from going forward to a full trial would be a consent decree.  There is some 
language that is part of her case that is used in lots of other parts of the Code, so 
there’s a risk that judicial interpretation could have a lot broader implications. 

 
5. Attorney-Client Session 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated the expected time of the Attorney-Client Session is one 
hour or less. 
 

6



Attorney Morris Richardson stated at the end of the session the open public meeting 
with reconvene and the Mayor will announce the termination of the Attorney-Client 
Session, but there is nothing else on the agenda after that other than adjournment. 
 
Attorney Morris Richardson stated to clear the room other than the individuals 
authorized to be there which are the Mayor, Vice Mayor, Commissioners, Town 
Manager, Attorney Morris Richardson, and the Court Reporter. 
 
Everyone other than the authorized individuals left the building. 

 
6. Termination of Attorney-Client Session 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover reconvened the public meeting after the termination of the 
Attorney-Client Session. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte was no longer present. 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie moved to adjourn the meeting; Vice Mayor Joyce 

Barton seconded; the Motion carried 4-0.  

Meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

 

             

        

 

      

 

7



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

MAY 18, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Commission Members: 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie 

Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Attorney Cliff Repperger  

Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Fire Chief Gavin Brown 

Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



1. Call to Order 

 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted roll call 

 

Commission Members Present  Staff Members Present 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover    Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton    Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie   Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Commissioner Corey Runte   Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Commissioner Marivi Walker   Fire Chief Gavin Brown 

       Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Commission Members Absent  Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

None 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance  

 

4. Public Comments 
 

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.   

 
 Jude Wilson 
 526 Sunset 
 
Jude Wilson stated she was here for two reasons.  She wanted to congratulate the 
Firefighters that are graduating this evening.  She stated her husband started the class 
with them but had to postpone it due to health reasons.  The second reason is to provide 
the Commission with pictures from Sunset Blvd after the last rain.  The first picture is 
the view from her garage looking across the street.  She stated it shows the cut is 
overflowing because the median is filled with plants and other materials.  The second 
picture is of a drain showing it is full.  She requested the project that has already 
started at Riverside be continued to remove the curb and stuff in the median all the 
way to Pine Street, so this will no longer be a problem 
 
 Ali Dennington 
 413 Surf Rd 
 
Ali Dennington asked where she can find the backup documentation for the audit.   

9



 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated the Town staff can provide that to her.   
 
Ali Dennington stated she has requested whatever information was sent to the auditor. 

 
5. Approval of the Agenda  

 
Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the Agenda; Commissioner Marivi 
Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
6. Presentation 

 
A. Fiscal Year 2021 Financial Audit presented by James Moore 

 
Zach Chalifour partner of James Moore reviewed the Town Audit and explained 
there are four reports that they issue that summarize the results of the audit.  The 
first report is an unmodified independent auditors’ report on the financial 
statements.  The second report is on internal control and compliance.  Zach stated 
there were two comments that were classified as significant deficiencies.  He 
explained the difference between significant deficiencies which are second-tier 
comments/recommendations, and the most significant deficiencies are material 
weaknesses which there were none.  The first comment was related to any 
adjustments required to correct account balances due to cutoff issues.  The second 
comment is related to the timeliness of bank reconciliations.  It is recommended that 
bank reconciliations be done within thirty days after the end of the month and some 
months were a little longer than that.  The third report goes over prior audit findings 
and the follow-up.  The last report is looking at the Town’s compliance with state 
statutes regarding investment activity and policies, and they found the Town to be in 
compliance with that.  Zach reviewed some of the financial statements.   
 
Further discussion ensued          

 
B. Presentation from Drown Zero International presented by Melbourne Beach Rotary 

Club and Cocoa Beach Rotary Club 
 
Alan Ross from the Melbourne Beach Rotary Club and Marcin Kubiack from the 
Cocoa Beach Rotary Club presented Drown Zero International.  The Rotary Clubs 
would like the Town to consider allowing Rotary to fund, install, and maintain 
Drown Zero life rescue stations at all eleven public beach accesses within the Town.  
Drown Zero Stations are a physical structure to assist with life-saving efforts.   
 
Further discussion ensued  
 
Paula Panton 
809 Riverside Rd 
 
Paula Panton stated she owns a water safety products company that supplies 
lifeguard equipment all over the world.  She stated no one should ever try to 
rescue someone without some type of device.  She explained the life ring is the 

10



most recognizable piece of rescue equipment that the general public recognizes 
and each one can assist three maybe four people to hang onto.  Paula stated this is 
a great idea. 
 
Steve Stewart 
305 Fourth Ave 
 
Steve Stewart asked if the life rings would be out there twenty-four seven.  
 
Marcin Kubiack stated yes, the entire station would always be there.  The life ring 
would always be there unless it was used or stolen which at that point it would be 
replaced. 
 
Jason Hanson 
241 Woody Circle 
 
Jason Hanson asked if there was a reason there isn’t a line on the life ring to 
encourage people to throw it rather than going into the water.   
 
Wyatt Werneth, who is working with both Rotary Clubs, stated entanglement issues 
become a big problem. 
 
Dan Brunger 
400 Sixth Ave 
 
Dan Brunger stated this is a good idea, and by not putting things on the life ring it 
will make it less likely to be a collector’s item.  He stated about fifteen years ago he 
went into the ocean to assist someone who was drowning and he didn’t have any 
device to assist him, so he is all for this.   
 

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the Rotary Club of Melbourne 
Beach and Cocoa Beach to fund, install, and maintain the Drown Zero Life Rescue 
Stations at all public beach accesses in the Town of Melbourne Beach for a total of 
eleven at no expense to the Town; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; 
Motion carried 5-0. 
 

C. Presentation of Donation from the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Firefighters 
Association.  

 
Fire Chief Gavin Brown stated the Volunteer Firefighters Association is a not-for-
profit 501 (c) 3 group that is not part of the fire department, but they fundraise to 
help fund some fire department needs with recruitment and retainment for the 
volunteers.  He stated they held a pancake breakfast on Easter, and they would like 
to donate the proceeds to the fire department donation fund.  Chief Brown 
explained the Association is made up of a Board who are volunteers with the fire 
department.  Vice President Travis Wood presented Chief Brown with the check. 

 
D. Promotional ceremony of new State Certified Volunteer Firefighters presented by 

Fire Chief Gavin Brown – Reception to follow 

11



 
Fire Chief Gavin Brown recognized and swore in the new State Certified Volunteer 
Firefighters: Tom Kloiber, Mike Dean, Sam Cox, and Jason Hanson.  He stated out 
of the ten students that started the class only five (four from Melbourne Beach) 
were able to complete all the necessary requirements including the minimum one 
hundred ninety-one hours of classroom training.  
 

Roll Call 

 

Commission Members Present  Staff Members Present 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover    Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton    Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie   Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Commissioner Corey Runte   Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Commissioner Marivi Walker   Fire Chief Gavin Brown 

       Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Commission Members Absent  Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

None 

 
7. Consent Agenda   

 
A. Site Plan Approval for 405 River View Ln 
B. Site Plan Approval for 1508 Pine St 

 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Vice Mayor 
Joyce Barton seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 

8. Old Business  
 

A. Consider the purchase and installation of 7 new street poles for Ocean Avenue, 
Ryckman Park Block. 
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated several companies, except for the two 
companies he provided, only provide poles and not the accompaniments to the poles.  
Both companies have identical products, but the company out of Texas has the lowest 
price.  Additional accompaniments can be added at a later date.  These would allow 
seasonal banners or potted plants to be hung from them.   
 
Item A in Old Business was pushed to the end of Old Business. 
 
Public Works Supervisor Tom Davis provided copies of the two proposals he was able 
to get.  Streetscapes came back with a modified proposal which is approximately two 
thousand dollars less than the original.   
 
Further discussion ensued 
 

 

12



Commissioner Corey Runte made a motion to waive the requirement for three 
proposals since we have two very qualified proposals; Commissioner Marivi 
Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie stated if the two companies have comparable products 
and esthetics she would recommend going with the cheaper company from Texas. 
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis clarified that every sign on the West end of Ocean 
will be switched to this style. 

 
Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve SA-SO a DBA of ACP International 
for the streetscape pole signs on Ocean Avenue as presented not to exceed five 
thousand dollars; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

B. Discussion on drafting a Low-Speed Vehicle Ordinance for the Town. 
 

Attorney Clifford Repperger said he is in the process of drafting the Low-Speed 
Vehicle Ordinance, but it was not ready for this meeting.  What’s in the packet is 
Indialantic’s and we are mirroring theirs.  He asked if there was anything specific the 
Commission would like included.   
 
Further discussion ensued 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked about the shared database and having to provide 
public records for a different municipality. 
 
Attorney Clifford Repperger advised anything that the Town maintains we would 
have to produce any information requested as part of a public records request. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro advised it would only be with Indialantic, and 
anything we have access to we would have to provide as part of a public records 
request. 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked if as part of the Interlocal agreement with 
Indialantic can we get free parking. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated she will ask. 
 

C. Proposed RFP for Cherry and Rosewood stormwater/road repair. 
 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated this is the first part of the stormwater 
project using the ARP funds.   She stated Cherry and Rosewood need immediate 
attention due to the continuous sinking of the roadway.  B.S.E Consulting prepared 
this RFP to bid on the project.     
 
Further discussion ensued 
 

13



Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve the bid package prepared by B.S.E 
Consultants for the Cherry and Rosewood stormwater/road repairs; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

D. Resolution 2022-05 Fee Schedule 
 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated this is very similar to what the Commission 
approved last month, however, there was one fee that was inadvertently left off for 
the building department.  The Town has a few different fee schedules, so this is also 
consolidating them into one. 
 
Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Road 
 
Ali Dennington stated she has pending public records requests that were submitted 
under the previous fee schedule, so the fees for her pending public records requests 
should not be changed. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated those fees stayed the same. 
 

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve Resolution 2022-05 as presented; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

9. New Business 
 

A. Request for an executive session. 
 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger stated there is a pending appeal in Code 
Enforcement case number 2020-CE-198.  The Special Magistrate rendered a 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order on March 30, 2022.  The 
Respondent filed a Notice of Appeal timely.  He stated he has a previously declared 
conflict and cannot represent the Town on appeal.  Conflict Counsel Morris 
Richardson has agreed to continue his representation of the Town on the case on 
appeal.  Conflict Counsel Richardson desires advice concerning the litigation.  
Florida State Statute Section 286.011(8) permits the Town Commission to meet in 
private with its legal counsel to discuss settlement negotiations or strategy sessions 
related to litigation expenditures.  Town Attorney Clifford Repperger stated the 
Executive Session would be part of a Special Town Commission meeting which would 
be open to the public, but when the meeting gets to the Executive Session then 
everyone must leave except for the Commission, Town Counsel, Town Manager, and 
the Court Reporter.   
 
Chuck Cain 
309 Surf Rd 
 
Chuck Cain stated he appreciates the Commission and Staff that seeks to enforce 
the Building Codes equitably.  He would urge the Commission to stand firm and not 
be dragged into a rabbit hole.   
 

14



Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Rd  
 
Ali Dennington stated the Town used to have a Code Enforcement Board which was 
made up of citizens that would vote.  She stated people decided the Code 
Enforcement Board was too slow or not making the right decisions, and so they got 
rid of the Code Enforcement Board and hired a Special Magistrate who is an 
attorney in Indialantic.  Anyone with a code violation will go in front of an attorney 
from Indialantic who has an ethics violation on his record.  The whole point of 
having a Special Magistrate was to be more cost-effective and faster, but it is 
costing you guys a lot more.  In theory, a Special Magistrate is a great idea, 
however, having personally gone through the experience there were no procedures 
set and she didn’t get to call any witnesses.  She thinks it will get overturned on 
appeal for several reasons.  She stated the Commission should reconsider putting 
the Code Enforcement Board back together. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover asked if Ali Dennington would not be suing the Town if five 
residents got together and ruled against her. 
 
Ali Dennington stated anyone can still appeal. She stated if she felt they made the 
wrong decision then yes, she would appeal.  She stated the Board might make a 
better decision.  Ali stated the Special Magistrate railroaded her and had his mind 
made up before he walked in the door.   
 

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the request for an Executive Session 
as presented; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

B. Consideration of Proclamation recognizing the Florida League of Cities and the 
Legislative Affairs Team for a job well done in the 2022 Legislative Session. 

 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton stated other Municipalities are doing the same type of 
thing. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated the Florida League of Cities including Vice Mayor Joyce 
Barton have done a ton of lobbying on our behalf.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover read the Proclamation recognizing the Florida League of Cities 
and the Legislative Affairs Team for a job well done in the 2022 Legislative Session. 
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to accept the Proclamation commending the 
Florida League of Cities and the Legislative Affairs Team for their hard work 
during the 2022 Florida Legislative Session; Commissioner Marivi Walker 
seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

C. Consideration of Proclamation recognizing May 11th through May 17th, 2022 as 
National Police Week. 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover read the Proclamation recognizing May 11th through May 17th, 
2022 as National Police Week. 

15



Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to accept the Proclamation recognizing National 
Police Week as presented; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion 
carried 5-0. 
 

D. Consideration of Proclamation recognizing May 21st through May 27th, 2022 as 
National Safe Boating Week. 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover read the Proclamation recognizing May 21st through May 27th, 
2022 as National Safe Boating Week. 
 
Robert Triebell 
29 Cove Rd 
 
On behalf of the Coast Guard and Coast Guard Auxiliary, Robert Triebell wanted 
to thank the City and the rest of the Town Council for supporting National Safe 
Boating Week for the past three years.  Robert Triebell provided boating statistics 
including 75% of deaths were caused by drowning, and 80% of those deaths did not 
have life jackets.  Alcohol use was the leading factor in accidents and deaths.  In 
70% of the accidents, the driver did not receive any type of instruction.  He stated 
the Coast Guard recognizes the Town of Melbourne Beach as a Safe Harbor, a Town 
that supports safe boating practices.  There was a Town event on Safe Boating, and 
the Coast Guard has provided training.   

 
Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the Proclamation recognizing May 
21st through May 27th as National Safe Boating Week; Commissioner Marivi 
Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

E. Consideration of Proclamation recognizing May 23rd through May 30th, 2022 as 
National Beach Safety Week. 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover read the Proclamation recognizing May 23rd through May 30th, 
2022 as National Beach Safety Week. 
 
Fire Chief Gavin Brown stated in alignment with the beach rescue stations that they 
just approved it would be good to recognize National Beach Safety Week. 
 

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the Proclamation recognizing May 
23rd through May 30th as National Beach Safety Week; Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 
seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

F. Consideration of Proclamation recognizing June 3, 2022, as National Gun Violence 
Awareness Day. 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover read the Proclamation recognizing June 3, 2022, as National 
Gun Violence Awareness Day. 
 
Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown stated this proclamation was requested by the 
Town of Indialantic who just approved it. 
 

16



Dan Brunger 
400 Sixth Ave 
 
Dan Brunger stated he would like it amended to criminal violence.  He stated it is 
the criminal, not the gun.  This is putting emphasis on the wrong thing in this 
situation. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated an important part of this is to pay tribute to the victims 
as well.   
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to accept the Proclamation declaring the first 
Friday in June as National Gun Violence awareness day in Melbourne Beach; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner 
Corey Runte casting the dissenting vote. 
 

G. Consideration of approving a $500 donation to the City of Melbourne for the 4th of 
July Fireworks Celebration.  

 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr stated prior to 2020, due to Covid, the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has donated $500.00 to the City of Melbourne for this.  The City 
of Melbourne is again requesting donations.   
 
Further discussion ensued 

 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve the $500.00 donation to MelBoom for 
the 4th of July fireworks celebration put on by the City of Melbourne; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
10. Staff Reports  

 
A. Town Attorney Report 

 
No Report 

 
B. Town Manager Report  

 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated she received great feedback from the 
employees that attended the Space Coast League of Cities dinner.  They really 
enjoyed it and felt good being included.  She stated Vice Mayor Joyce Barton, Police 
Chief Melanie Griswold, and Lieutenant Matthew Smith attended Space Coast TPO 
to receive the 2021 Engineering Award on behalf of the Town.  She also received a 
lot of great feedback about Founders Day.  There were no police or fire-related 
incidents.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated Founders Day was awesome and thanked 
everyone for the hard work.  He stated it was the busiest he has seen it.  
 

17



Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated the day after the last meeting the Gemini second 
graders came to Town Hall for a tour.  He had the honor of speaking with all of 
them. 

 
C. Town Clerk Report  

 
No Report 

 
D. Departmental Reports 

 
1. Building Department 

 
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated everything is going well.  There are 
several new homes coming into the area.  He is working on updating the 
landscape ordinance.  The new software program is very helpful in streamlining 
the system. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated as part of the landscape ordinance which says 
residences in the single-family zoning cannot have a hedge or shrub that is taller 
than four feet.   
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton stated it would be nice to provide some privacy and a 
sound barrier.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated the traffic is getting worse and worse, especially 
along A1A, and the ordinances state a fence that goes past the front of the house 
can only be four feet tall.  He explained on the residential streets neighbors 
across the street and next to you watch out for your house, but for the residents 
that live on A1A, the neighbors across the street have a huge barrier preventing 
them from looking out for their neighbors across the street.  Would it be 
reasonable for houses that directly face A1A to increase the fence or wall 
restriction to six feet to have a better sound barrier, more privacy, and security 
protection from A1A.     
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated other Municipalities do have that same 
type of exception. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte and Vice Mayor Joyce Barton stated that is very 
reasonable and they are open to it. 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie stated she would be open to the discussion, but 
would also want to make sure the three-foot right-of-way is adhered to.     
 

2. Public Works Department  
   

Public Works Director Tom Davis stated they planted plants in Bicentennial 
Park and extended the landscaping around Ryckman Park, the broken parking 
kiosk was fixed and delivered so it will be installed soon, and posted signs that 

18



say bikes must stop at stop signs.  Making good progress on Sunset Blvd, and 
added more golf cart parking spots. 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked about the five-foot area between the library 
and the grocery store.  Who is responsible for maintaining that area. 
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated an irrigation company and a tree 
trimming company were there the other week. 
 
Further discussion ensued 
 

3. Code Enforcement  
 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked about 505 First Ave building a pond and 
M/H in front, and why is this a case. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated she has been there and the pond is 
very shallow and there is nothing that prohibits the pond.    
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated it was reviewed to make sure it wasn’t 
against any building codes or considered a nuisance.   
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger stated the M/H stands for a motor home. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte requested we allow Code Enforcement to do their 
job and the investigation. 
 

4. Police Department  
 
  No additions to the report 
 

5. Fire Department  
 
  No additions to the report 
 

6. Finance Department  
 
Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the Finance Report as presented; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
11. Town Commission Comments   

 
A. General Comments 

 
None 

 
B. Review of Commission Action List  

 
 

19



Updated 

 Grant funding opportunities for stormwater – Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

spoke with Scott from B.S.E. to coordinate our efforts, and she found two grants 

that just opened up. - August 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover recommended reaching out to IRL which has a team of 
grant writers that are at our disposal to get feedback. 

 

 Permanent tree lighting – Public Works Director Tom Davis would like to 
purchase two different types of lights one that’s installed in the first V of the 
tree and the other would be in the ground to see how they look.  The 
installation would probably need to be a flex conduit on the back side of the 
tree because of the squirrels.  – next month      

 

 Audio system in the Community Center – Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated they 
want fewer cords, possibly a television, and microphones for each seat. – next 
month 

 

 S.E.A project – Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated she wanted to have a 
table at Founders Day, however, she was unable to attend.  The additional 
parking spots are done, planting in Bicentennial Park was done, and new poles 
along Ocean Ave are in the works.  The next big-ticket item would be 
underground retention for stormwater. – next month 

 
Further discussion ensued 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated we somewhat have a deadline now because FDOT 
said they are going to do their portion of A1A during the fiscal year 2026. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte would like to see a public workshop scheduled 
within the next three months. 
 
Commissioners agreed to have a public workshop in July.  
 

 Low-speed vehicle certification process – ordinance and Interlocal agreement 
next month 
 

 Multi-generational – Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated this came from 
Planning and Zoning wanting to define the word kitchen.  Our code right now 
prohibits two kitchens but does not define what a kitchen is.  – next month 

   
Mayor Wyatt Hoover recommended having an agenda item next month to go 
over what parts of the code would prohibit multi-generational living.       
 

12. Adjournment 
 

20



Commissioner Corey Runte moved to adjourn; Commissioner Marivi Walker 

seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m. 

21



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

APRIL 20, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Commission Members: 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton 

Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 

Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Attorney Cliff Repperger  

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



1. Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hoover called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted roll call 

 

Commission Members Present 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 

Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 

Commissioner Members Absent 

Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 

 

Staff Members Present 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Fire Chief Gavin Brown 

Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Police Chief Melanie Griswold 

Interim Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mayor Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance  

 

4. Presentations 

 

Police Chief Melanie Griswold presented Corporal Zachary Martin with an Officer of 

The Year award. 

 

5. Public Comments 
 

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the Agenda.   
 

 

23



Kate Wilborn 
502 Second Ave 

 
Kate Wilborn asked what preparations are being made for the next time it rains.  She 
stated a wall and a luxury home is going to be built when the land should be for water 
retention. Kate Wilborn stated what good is the Town government if it is not protecting 
its residents.  Kate Wilborn stated houses near her have flooded, and houses need to be 
built in a way that does not flood their neighbors.   Kate Wilborn advised she watched 
a video of the Town Manager and she is embarrassed.  She stated if she floods this time 
she will sue the Town. 
 

Ted Funkhouser 
509 Banyan Way 

 
Ted Funkhouser stated there is a property on Banyan Way that is being rented out as 
an Air BnB.  There are reports around the country. We need to do something about 
owner-occupied, but the owner lives in Arizona and gets a homestead exemption.  
Something needs to be done in Melbourne Beach that stops vacation rental 
development in single-family homes.  This particular home is not registered with any 
place.  Please do something about these day to day rentals 
 
Mayor Hoover stated the State has taken away almost all of our ability as a Municipality 
to control vacation rentals.  Regarding his occupancy and homestead exemption that is 
something we can look into with respect to the taxes he is paying.  Mayor Hoover stated 
the Municipality is not permitted to limit the length of time of a vacation rental that 
would be the State. 
 
Mr. Funkhouser stated Boca Raton just enacted something recently that does not allow 
day-to-day rentals, and the minimum rental is one month.  He stated he spoke with 
Debbie Mayfield’s office and they advised the Municipality needs to have an ordinance.     
 
Mayor Hoover asked for Mr. Funkhouser to provide any information he has to the Town 
Manager, so we can verify the Town is doing everything we can. 
 
Commission Corey Runte stated the Town has a noise ordinance and if there is a 
violation to notify the police.  He also stated the State does not allow Municipalities to 
restrict them unless there was already an ordinance in place.  For example, Indialantic 
already had an ordinance in place prior to the State coming out with Home Rule, so they 
are able to continue to restrict vacation rentals under that ordinance.  He stated our 
Code Enforcement has done an excellent job trying to identify any nonregistered 
vacation rentals in Town.  
 

Gail Goudy 
205 Ash Ave 

 
Gail Goudy stated she expects our Town Manager to act in a professional manner, and 
it is very disturbing. What is the Commission doing concerning her actions?  There is 
a complaint against the Town Manager from the previous Town Clerk and a video of 
the Town Manager that is very disturbing.  If anything it confirms the Town Manager 

24



has used poor judgment, not acted in a professional manner, and is not representing 
the Town in a good way or a good example to the employees.  As the Commission this 
is something you need to seriously think about, and what is the Commission going to 
do about this. 
 

Steve Walters 
Sixth Ave 

 
Steve Walters stated he is wearing a mask because the microphone is not sealed. He 
stated he received a copy of the grievance filed by the previous Town Clerk Jennifer 
Torres, a complaint from the Town Clerk before her Nancy Wilson, and other written 
complaints.  Mr. Daniels was also mentioned in that grievance.  Jennifer Torres was 
doing a good job, and that is the toughest job in the Town Hall.  Keep in mind the 
Deputy Town Clerk was fired and never replaced. He is sorry she is gone and you will 
be hearing from Mr. Daniels and him soon. 
 

Jim Simmons  
409 Avenue B 

 
Jim Simmons stated the more things change the more they stay the same.  Same people 
with the same grievances for forty-plus years with the same issues against the Town 
Manager that they brought for ten or fifteen years.  He would encourage you to look 
at the history behind the Town Manager’s goings-on, and the repeated attacks on the 
Town Manager and see how repetitive it is.  He has a lot of management experience 
and has been the victim of the attacks as Mayor.  They have a nice platform that they 
can say anything they want.  No matter how true or untrue it is.  When these types of 
issues come forward in a public forum they need to be taken with a grain of salt.  They 
need to be looked at seriously from both sides.  He stated Elizabeth as the Town 
Manager has his confidence.    
 

Ali Dennington 
413 Surd Rd 

 
Ali Dennington stated an independent investigation should be done to look into the 
grievance against the Town Manager.  One allegation was deleted text messages which 
is a violation.  There are a bunch of other allegations.  She requested the Mayor to 
temporarily lock down all records.  She stated she has made a bunch of public records 
requests.  She does plan to sue the Town for the denial of several public records 
requests.  Partly because of the shed issue with disagreeing with the interpretation of 
the Code.  Ali Dennington requested that all of the documentation that she provided be 
entered into the record for the meeting.  As well as all of the emails sent in the past two 
days be entered into the record.   
 
Mayor Hoover asked if she was referring to the seventy-five emails she sent.  
 
Ali Dennington verified yes those are the emails she would like entered into the record.  
 
 

 

25



6. Approval of the Agenda  
 
Commissioner Runte moved to approve the Agenda; Vice Mayor Barton 
seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

 
7. Consent Agenda   

 
A. Approval of Special Town Commission Meeting minutes for March 2, 2022 

   
B. Approval of RTCM Meeting minutes for March 15, 2022 

 
C. Site Plan Approval for 1507 Pine Street 

 
D. Site Plan Approval for 404 Sixth Avenue 

 
E. Site Plan Approval for 414 Hibiscus Trail 

 
F. Site Plan Approval for 309 Ocean Avenue 

 
Vice Mayor Barton asked about not getting the entire site plan and just paring down 
parts of it for the Commission. The site plans are a lot of paper that other Boards 
have already done their job and gone through and approved.     
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated the site approval process is a very diligent 
procedure that goes through the consulting engineer, Town Planner, the Building 
Department, and the Planning and Zoning Board. Then it goes to the Commission 
on the consent agenda to vote yes or no.   

 
Vice Mayor Barton moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Commissioner Walker 
seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

 

8. Old Business  
 

A. Final Reading of Ordinance 2021-04 Town of Melbourne Beach Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 
Attorney Clifford Repperger read Ordinance 2021-04 for the second reading for 
adoption.  Attorney Clifford Repperger went over the process that Ordinance 2021-
04 has gone through. 
 
Further discussion ensued 
 

Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Rd 

 
Ali Dennington stated she would like to object to 309 which was on the consent 
agenda.  She objected to the Planning and Zoning and would like to object here as 
well.  She would also like to object to the Comprehensive Plan.  She did file an 
objection with the State and with the Town.   Ali stated she would like to reiterate 

26



that she attended and objects for all of the reasons stated many of which are just 
procedures the Town did not follow.  There was mention of not having signed 
minutes from Planning and Zoning which she believes is a requirement.  Without 
signed minutes she is not sure those meetings are valid.  Regarding the section 
about if it gets destroyed, the language was changed to take out the percent, so now 
if it gets destroyed at any amount.  Why was the letter from the State not included 
which states objection one requires each local government to include a property 
rights element in its Comprehensive Plan.  The local government has proposed its 
own property rights element instead of the State one.  The proposed property rights 
element limits the consideration to private property to planning and development.  
She stated it says it has to be every decision, so she objects to that.  The response 
that it will be worked on is not sufficient and the second reading should be 
postponed and fix that.  Why wasn’t the letter included, and why wasn’t the 
property rights element changed.  
 
Attorney Clifford Repperger stated the dated November 22, 2021, from the DEO was 
included in the agenda packet.  With respect to the property rights element, the 
changes that were requested were made. 
 

Kate Wilborn 
502 Second Ave 

 
Kate Wilborn stated if this is a master plan, she goes by the Town bulletin board 
every night, and this meeting is not posted.  She does care about the master plan 
because it seems to be for a developer such as Commissioner Corey Runte.  She 
stated there is more and more development and fill fill fill.     
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated very recently the Stormwater requirement for individual 
properties was amended to increase the individual retention requirement from one 
and a half inches in twenty-four hours to six inches in twenty-four hours.   What that 
means is every time a property is redeveloped or torn down and rebuilt they are 
increasing the amount of stormwater they are retaining on their own property.  This 
is certified by an independent civil engineer.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated he would like to set the record straight.  He is the 
Vice President of pre-construction for certifying commercial construction for his 
company, and has not done anything along this strip in Melbourne Beach.  
Melbourne Beach has enacted a new code that is one of the most strict of any 
beachside municipality to help protect the residents.  In addition, the Town is able 
to spend over one million dollars on stormwater treatment.   
 

Steve Walters 
Sixth Ave 

 
Steve Walters received a call a few months ago regarding builders for new homes 
stating they need a perc test which can cost a couple thousand dollars.  The 
homeowner had to pay twenty-five hundred dollars, but the ordinance doesn’t say 
that.  He stated the ordinance should be clarified to state a perc test is not required. 
 

27



Commissioner Corey Runte stated per the House of Engineering a perc test is 
required as part of the approval process to calculate stormwater retention 
requirements.   
 

Funoe LLC 
413 Surf Rd 

 
Ali Dennington spoke on behalf of her son who is a trustee of Funoe LLC.  Ali 
Dennington stated earlier it was said that the engineer is independent.  However, 
it is the Town Engineer who has a contract with the Town.  They have records that 
are public records.  It does not matter that they are outside of the Town which she 
has requested records related to the Town Engineer last year that she has not 
gotten.  There was mention about all of this money that was going to be spent on 
stormwater, and she wanted to note that the grievance noted $100,00.00 that was 
miscalculated and taken from stormwater, so she objects to that.         

 
Vice Mayor Barton moved to adopt the Resolution 2021-04 from the second 
reading which amends Resolution 2021-02; Commissioner Walker seconded; 
Motion carried 4-0. 
 

9. New Business 
 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2022-04 amending the Building Permit Fee Schedule. 
 

Commissioner Corey Runte stated Robert Bitgood was brought on full-time as the 
Chief Building Official, and he has received numerous unsolicited compliments.  He 
goes above and beyond to protect our residents to make sure everything meets the 
code and it is quality workmanship.  He stated a building department cannot be a 
profit center.  It is self-sustained and does not generate a profit.  Robert Bitgood is 
working to get everything digital, and we are now doing inspections five days a week.   
              
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated per state statute the building department is 
an enterprise fund and should not be counting on the Town for funding.  The fund 
goal would be to have up to twice the operating budget, and if the fund gets to that 
point the Town can either lower the fees or offer incentives for things such as 
stormwater improvements to residents. He stated the building department fees were 
based on 2014, and a lot has changed since then.  He explained the minimum permit 
fee will be $75.00 for construction valued up to $2500.00; then anything above that 
will pay an additional percentage based on the value of construction.  He proposed 
increasing the cost for doing work without a permit to be up to four times the cost of 
the permit at the Building Officials’ discretion.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte explained that currently there is no incentive to have the 
work completed properly before the first inspection because there are no re-
inspection fees.  
 
Mayor Hoover stated the Building Department is essentially net-zero financially for 
the Town, and these changes will allow the Building Department to be more efficient 
and provide better accountability. 

28



 
Further discussion ensued 
 

Julie Samuel  
2320 S River Rd 

 
Julie Samuel asked how much of the Town’s money was used in the year prior, and 
based on last year’s numbers how much would be taken in with the new fee 
schedule? 
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated he does not have information regarding last 
year.  He stated last month by enforcing through plan review what was supposed to 
be taken in would have averaged $7,000.00.   
 
Mayor Hoover stated part of the reason for doing this is because the building 
department was understaffed and so the level of service the Town was providing was 
very poor.  Such as only doing inspections two days a week.  This will allow the Town 
to provide an adequately staffed building department.   
 

Steve Walters 
Sixth Ave 

 
Steve Walters asked after listening to all that, what you are about to vote on is to 
raise the building permit fee?  Another tax folks. 
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated this would be the first increase since 2014. 
 

Kate Wilborn 
502 Second Ave 

 
Kate Wilborn asked what about impact fees?  If someone is buying a luxury home 
an impact fee wouldn’t be a big deal, and it would help people in older homes from 
having their foundation crack.  Also, grants to protect our river and people from 
flooding.  
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated there are impact fees assigned to any new 
construction project that are set by Brevard County.  This fee schedule would bring 
us up to date and be comparable to surrounding municipalities.  
 

Jim Simmons 
409 Ave B 

 
What I think is missing in this discussion as well as the additional services being 
provided and the time scales is when he was Mayor he received a call from a 
resident stating their builder told him the Building Official is very difficult to work 
with.  Jim Simmons stated he doesn’t think that is true anymore, we have a new 
building official, but what you’re missing is the Building Official works for the 
resident, he doesn’t work for a building contractor, he is supposed to make sure the 
builder functions to his responsibilities, and provides a safeguard to the 

29



homeowner to make sure the contractor is not taking shortcuts.  The Building 
Official works for the homeowner.   
 

Dan Brunger 
400 Sixth Ave 

 
Dan Brunger stated the comments about donating money bother him.  That has 
been raised to the Town before about charitable contributions and if he pays a tax 
or a fee, he would not want it donated to anyone else.  If he wanted to donate he 
would do it himself.  He also asked about fees being raised.  He stated he has a 
maybe fifteen-foot section of fence that he would like to put up in the future, so 
would he have to pay the $75.00 fee and then pay even more for that section of 
fence.   
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood stated under this new update you can change up to 
twenty-four feet of a fence without a permit as long as you are not putting it on 
anyone else’s property.  As far as the donations discussion goes the money does not 
need to be donated the fees could be lowered or even eliminated temporarily.  
Donating money is just an option and is regulated by the State on what the money 
can be donated to.  The building department is fully funded and sustained by permit 
fees, so no taxpayer money goes to fund the building department.   
 

Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Rd 

 
Ali Dennington stated she is going to make the same objection to every single thing.  
She stated this is over four hundred pages.  She asked when did the Commission 
receive a copy.  
 
Mayor Hoover stated Friday 
 
Ali Dennington stated she requested it two days ago. She emailed on the eighteenth 
each Commissioner, the Town Manager, the Town Attorney, and the Town Clerk, 
even though we don’t have one right now so the Town doesn’t have a records 
custodian, she did not get a copy of the agenda packet until today.  Ali stated she 
objects to everything in the meeting that is decided on the bases that her due process 
rights have been violated.  The whole point of a public meeting is to give people 
notice of what will be decided so that they can object if they want, but if you limit 
the amount of time they are able to digest the things being decided they cannot 
formulate an objection.  If she had two or three days she might not have any 
objections, but because she only had a couple of hours it is a due process violation.  
You need a reasonable opportunity to review something.   
 
Mayor Hoover apologized for not forwarding the packet, but they received over 
seventy emails from her, and he has not had time to read them all.   
 
Further discussion ensued       
 

30



Ali Dennington stated the emails she sent she had to do that legally to preserve her 
record.   

 
Vice Mayor Barton moved to approve the Resolution 2022-04 in regard to the 
increase to building permit fees effective immediately; Commissioner Walker 
seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 
 

B. Consider the purchase and installation of 7 new street poles for Ocean Avenue, 
Ryckman Park block. 

  
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated as part of the Town’s plan for beautification, 
he would like to purchase and install new street poles for the west end of Ocean Ave.    
 
Mayor Hoover asked where the funds were coming from. 
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated the Commission took $40,000.00 from the 
Redwood property and put it aside for beautification.  
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated he only sees one proposal, and they are required 
to get three if it is over $4,000.00.  He stated he would like to see at least one more 
preferably two more proposals.  Florida Bulb and Ballast were the ones that just did 
the tennis courts and saved us $30,000.00.  Also, FPL does a leasing program. 
 
Vice Mayor Barton stated she likes the idea of doing this and has seen how beautiful 
it looks in other Towns, but would request more proposals. 
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated he will come back next month with more. 
 

10. Staff Reports  
 
A. Town Attorney Report 

 
Attorney Clifford Reppeger stated he would hesitate to get too involved in a 
discussion, but he would like to address the elephant in the room.  As you’re aware 
we have an Interim Town Clerk tonight because the Town Clerk has separated 
employment with the Town.  There was a special Town Commission meeting 
scheduled that was canceled.  The purpose of that meeting was to consider the appeal 
from the Town Clerk to a final written discipline that the Town Clerk had received.  
On April 12th the parties met and discussed the issues and the Town Manager agreed 
to rescind the final written warning and to agree that it would not be an official part 
of the Town Clerks employment history.  A copy of the executed letter rescinding the 
final written warning has been provided to you.  Given the withdrawal of that final 
written warning, the Special Town Commission Meeting was canceled as 
unnecessary.  The parties then entered into a separation agreement which both 
parties signed, and the Town Clerk voluntarily resigned.  On April 4th a separate 
grievance complaint was filed with his office, pursuant to the separation agreement 
that was entered into the Town Clerk voluntarily withdrew the grievance complaint, 
and asked that the grievance complaint investigation cease.  That is what happened, 
the investigation was closed and no further action was taken.  Those documents are 

31



public records, and from an employer’s standpoint, the issue was resolved.  If the 
Commission feels something further needs to be done they can advise him 
accordingly.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated it is important in any organization to evaluate 
individuals on their work, and certainly, none of us are perfect, since Elizabeth has 
taken over as Town Manager we have never seen the parks department operating as 
effectively as it is, from a Commissioner standpoint, the budgeting process is smooth 
and streamlined, the building department is operating better than it has, all of the 
departments in the Town.  Mayor Hoover stated he is frequently in Town Hall and 
the morale is good and they have a positive experience working with and under 
Elizabeth.  She is not supposed to be everyone’s best friend, she is their boss and 
sometimes that can create unfortunate situations.  Holding people accountable is not 
fun, and so there are always difficult situations.  He stated he is proud of Elizabeth 
and the work she has done.   
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton stated she would agree with everything Mayor Hoover just 
said.  She has witnessed the same thing in her time here.  She goes into Town Hall a 
lot and she sees the morale in the offices.  Being a former employer she knows it is 
difficult and knows how hard it can be when you have employees to deal with when 
there is a problem.  Sometimes things have to change, and she is very confident we 
will find the right person for this position, and everyone will get their needs satisfied.  
Thank you to Attorney Clifford Repperger for allowing the Commission to speak on 
this because it is the elephant in the room, and there have been a lot of hard feelings 
and harsh things that have been said and done.  We live in an amazing little town 
and she would suggest everyone move forward from this.  It is a learning experience 
for everyone involved, but she thinks we have all learned and will move forward in a 
positive way.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated he is on six nonprofit boards throughout the 
county and he used to chair a quasi-judicial board in Melbourne.  Prior to Elizabeth 
Melbourne Beach used to call other Towns to see how they were doing things and 
model it after them.  He spoke with another City Manager who stated Melbourne 
Beach is doing some amazing things and they are looking at how we are doing things 
now.  It is important to not only look at just one person who didn’t work out for 
whatever reason, but to look at the bigger picture.  This Town has never been in a 
better place.  People see that, and other municipalities see that.  Elizabeth is our 
Town leader and we need to respect her.  There will always be tough decisions she 
has to make.      

 
B. Town Manager Report  

 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated she and Chief Griswold were going to meet 
with Indialantic Town Manager Casey and Chief Conner about golf carts and the 
Interlocal agreement, but the meeting had to be postponed.  She stated Public Works 
Director Tom Davis just installed four more golf cart parking spots along Ocean Ave.  
She was on a conference call with District five for FDOT to put their section of Ocean 
Ave on their map for paving in 2026.  That also provided the opportunity to discuss 
the entrance and egress for Ocean Park and the shopping centers.  It is the annual 

32



budget cycle, so it is time for the Commission to review her and as part of that process 
she would like the Commission to think about what goals they would like to task her 
with.  What they would like to see in the next twelve months, but maybe also twenty-
four and thirty-six so if it requires budgeting funds she can make sure they start 
setting that money aside.  
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover asked for a few email reminders with deadlines.   
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated she would like to have the first budget 
meeting in June, so she would like to have the information by the end of May to give 
her a little bit of time to estimate the costs and work them into the budget. She stated 
they can send the items as they think of them, they do not all need to be listed and 
sent at the same time.  She will send out an email to them.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte asked if the audit was done. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated it was done and they will be presenting next 
month.  She stated we did fantastic; Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr did an awesome 
job.   

 
C. Town Clerk Report  

 
No Report 

 
D. Departmental Reports 

 
1. Building Department 

 
  No additions to the report 

 
2. Public Works Department  

   
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated four golf cart parking spots were added 
in Ryckman Park.  The DAR has done a tremendous job on the Ryckman House.  
Landscaping in Ryckman Park was done.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated the bathrooms look amazing, and the Ocean 
Park sitting area is beautiful.   
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated the palm trees in the park are out of 
control.  He stated they spend hours having to pick up palm fronds.  Tom stated 
he would like to be able to trim them; he knows there were a lot of complaints last 
time, but if he keeps it at three and nine that should allow him to at least cut the 
dead stuff off.  
 
Further discussion ensued 
 

Jim Simmons 
409 Avenue B 

33



 
Jim Simmons stated the only concern would be bat roosting.  We have done 
everything we can to encourage bats in town, and they breed in the boots of 
cabbage palms.  He stated we should look into when is a good time to trim 
cabbage palms so the bats are not nesting.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover clarified that when the trees are trimmed leave the boots 
alone and only trim the palm fronds.  He asked if there was an update on the 
Sunset swale modification.  It was previously discussed about uplighting, but is it 
possible to take out the Christmas lights.  
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis stated he spoke with the Town Manager today 
about the Sunset project and it might have to wait for Founders Day, but it might 
start sooner.  They plan to cut the curb and take out the compacted vegetation 
that is stopping water from going down.  Regarding the Christmas lights, they will 
be taken down before Founders Day.  He stated he found a company out of Tampa 
that has an in-ground canister light that he really likes.           

 
3. Code Enforcement  

 
No additions to the report. 

 
4. Police Department  

 
Chief Melanie Griswold stated after numerous complaints on First Avenue; we 
have put the speed trailer there.  There has been a large increase in traffic, so 
speed humps have been installed.  Unfortunately, the Police Department will be 
phasing out the drone program due to security standards from the government 
as of January 1, 2023.  The government has given agencies a list of five approved 
drones that are allowed.  The approved drones are between $2,000.00 and 
$7,000.00 and are too compact so they would not be able to use them for life-
saving in the water like they want.   
 
Commissioner Marivi Walker stated she witnessed something horrible while 
walking on Riverside the other day.  Can anything be done on Riverside for 
speeding?  She also asked about an incident at Gemini and a letter about needing 
more officers.   
 
Chief Griswold stated we do need at least two more officers.  Regarding the 
incident near Gemini, Chief Griswold was working from home to assist the 
officers.  That incident was not in our jurisdiction, we were just assisting the 
Sheriff’s Office, but if we got a call in our jurisdiction we would have had to break 
from that call.  Indialantic was also on scene as well as a couple of K-9s. 
 
Mayor Hoover asked what the nature of the challenge is and what the current 
situation is with the number of officers on duty. 
 
Chief Griswold stated a lot of complaints that they have received are related to 
traffic.  Everyone has seen an increase in traffic, not necessarily speeding, but just 

34



more people are here.  There are certain things she would like to do that are in 
the works right now.  Having more officers to concentrate on traffic would be very 
helpful.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated regarding walking along Riverside when the 
road project starts the sidewalk will be continued which will at least allow a 
barrier between vehicles and people walking.            

 
5. Fire Department  

 
Chief Gavin Brown stated three volunteers completed the one hundred ninety-
one hour State approved firefighter training course that was taught in-house by 
State certified fire instructors.  He stated they held a few multi-agency fire 
trainings at a house donated by the Formica family.  There are also four new 
candidates that have successfully gone through the sixty-day training program. 
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton stated there is a scholarship opportunity coming up 
through the Space Coast League of Cities for people working in the fire or police 
department, or people that are interested in getting into that field.   
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated they had a very successful pancake 
breakfast in conjunction with the Parks Board for the Easter party.      

 
6. Finance Department  

 
Commissioner Corey Runte asked if our total expenditure rate is fifty-three 
percent.   
 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr stated yes, and this is the new software report.  
There is a new encumbrance column which is money that is marked for purchase 
orders.   
 

Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Rd 

 
Ali Dennington stated she would like to reiterate her earlier objection that she 
did not have enough time to review the voluminous record that the Commission 
got on Friday, but she did not get it until a few hours before the meeting.  She 
stated she objects to everything in the entire document.  She also stated she will 
provide her written objections and supporting documents at the end.  She asked 
for someone to touch on the $100,000.00 that had been lost or miscalculated 
which was taken from stormwater and put somewhere else.  She stated she 
requested the audit records last year and she has not gotten anything on that.  
She also previously requested the contracts for the building that is contracted 
out and she has never gotten those.   
 

Kate Wilborn 
502 Second Ave 

 

35



Kate Wilborn stated she does not know if everyone has seen the video of Town 
Manager Mascaro, but the video is out there and should be addressed.  She 
would really like to compliment the Police Department, Fire Department, and 
Tom Davis they work really hard and she appreciates that.  She would like the 
same from the Town Council and Town Manager.   
 

Julie Samuel 
2320 S River Rd 

 
Julie Samuel stated she might have missed public comment on the individual 
reports, but she is curious why Officer Rick was suddenly removed from Gemini.  
She stated she works with Elizabeth and has seen the video, but she would say 
some sort of public apology or something to address it.    
 
Chief Griswold stated she received anonymous complaints regarding SRO Rick 
Dovale at the school and that is why he was removed.  It is under investigation so 
she cannot get into it.       
 

Chelsea Hansen 
1807 Neptune Dr 

 
Chelsea Hansen stated she would also like some type of acknowledgment.  She 
thinks it could be really positive for Melbourne Beach she loves living here, but 
she missed the part where this was addressed.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover stated they hear the concerns, but they have not received 
the entire video yet to review it and discuss it.   

 
Vice Mayor Barton moved to approve the Finance Report as presented; 
Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

 
11. Town Commission Comments   

 
A. General Comments 

 
Vice Mayor Barton stated the Space Coast League of Cities meeting that we host is 
coming up on May 9th.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte stated Founders Day is Saturday, May 7th.  For any 
vendors that would like to participate there is an application on the website. Also 
for anyone that would like to watch the Mayor and Commissioner Corey Runte 
skydive behind Sand on the Beach at their own expense on Founders Day in the 
morning. 
 
Steve Walters stated he would make sure he packs their shoot. 
 
Town Manager Mascaro stated the Town will have a table at Founders Day to get 
feedback from residents. 
 

36



Vice Mayor Barton asked what advice we have for people coming from outside of 
the Town regarding parking.  What about a shuttle.   
 
Chief Griswold stated from Pine to Riverside will be blocked off.  Regarding patrons 
coming to the park, they will have to park elsewhere and walk.  She stated Rotary 
did a shuttle and there wasn’t much participation in it.   

 
B. Review of Commission Action List  

 
Town Manager Mascaro stated the meeting with Indialantic had to be rescheduled, 
so that will go to May.   

 
12.   Adjournment 

 

Commissioner Runte moved to adjourn; Vice Mayor Barton seconded; Motion 

carried 4-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m. 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   Old Business  

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2022 

Subject:  Multi-Generational Living/ Kitchens 

From:   Town Manager Mascaro 

Background Information: A recommendation from P&Z was brought to the Commission during 

the January 19, 2022 meeting to update the Code of Ordinances to include a definition of kitchen. 

The Commission decided not to incorporate the definition provided by the Planning and Zoning 

Board.  The Commission has discussed the issues surrounding multi-generational living which 

would include an additional kitchen.   

The Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances currently prohibits living quarters in an 

accessory structure 7A-57(a)(2).  The definition of living quarters is in located in 1A-3 Definitions: 

Dwelling Unit or Living Unit. One (1) or more rooms with private bath and kitchen facilities 

comprising an independent self-contained dwelling unit:  Under the code a second kitchen in a 

single family dwelling (One residential dwelling unit on a single parcel of land) home would 

constitute a two family dwelling under our code, which is prohibited.  Our code also prohibits guest 

houses, or any dwelling subordinate to the primary structure. 

The Brevard County Property Appraiser does allow Grandparent Quarters and offers a tax 

incentive for those properties.  There is specific criteria that must be met in order to obtain the tax 

incentive. One of the qualifying requirements states the property must comply with local land 

development regulations. 

Brevard County allows for a Single-family residential second kitchen facility in their Code Of 

Ordinances Section 62-1947.  There are six requirements which must be met in order for the 

installation of the second kitchen. 

The County Code also allows for Guesthouse or servants’ quarters as a detached structure in 

Section 62-1932 (c), which allows a kitchen in a guest house on a parcels of at least one acre in 

size and additional restrictions. 

 Recommendation: Consider the language provided in Brevard County’s Code Of Ordinances, 

which allows for a single-family residence to have a second kitchen facility and how the 

Commission might apply this to the Town of Melbourne Beach’s Code of Ordinances. 

Attachments: RTCM Agenda item dated January 19, 2022 (2 pages) 

            Town of Melbourne Beach Code Definitions and Regulations (4 pages) 

             Brevard County Property Appraisers application for Grandparent Quarters (2pgs) 

                           Brevard County Code Of Ordinances for Single-family residential second kitchen facilities  

              and Guest Houses or servants’ quarters. (2 pages) 

 

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    

Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: June 15, 2022 

Subject:Beach front Dog Park    

Submitted By: Commissioner Quarrie 

Background Information: Residents are using the beach and parks more often for enjoyment with their 

dogs. I believe it would be a good use of our park resources to open up the access in Loggerhead Park to 

dogs creating a dog park. 

The Town purchased property in 1999 for $350,000. The Town may have received a Grant for the 

purchase. Records might need to be searched to see if it would omit using the property beach access for 

a dog park. 

I would like to make LAV or Golf Cart parking available in front area of the site if deemed safe under the 

sea grapes. Extra NO Parking signs enforcement for those property owners surrounding the site. If 

parking not safe then residents would only be able to walk their dogs to park which would probably be 

OK. Golfcart parking would be better if safe. No car parking. 

The board walk currently used would be fine for access without improvements with no harm to 

vegetation. 

Limited access due to parking would create a dog park for residents and not be used by general public. 

This limitation would create a more responsible use since it would be residents of the Town. After all 

that is why the park was created. For use of the residents. 

Recommendation: If Commission in agreement, make a visual of how many LSV’s and Golf Carts could 

park safely. Review needs for pet waste removal and if available water supply source. Costs of any 

improvements 

 

Attachments:  3 

95



96



97



Brevard County Property Appraiser
Titusville • Viera • Melbourne • Palm Bay

PROPERTY DETAILS

Phone: (321) 264-6700
https://www.bcpao.us

Account 2848199
Owners MELBOURNE BEACH, TOWN OF
Mailing Address 507 OCEAN AVENUE MELBOURNE BCH FL 32951
Site Address NONE
Parcel ID 28-38-08-00-519
Property Use 8080 - MUNICIPALLY OWNED LAND - VACANT
Exemptions EXMU - MUNICIPALLY OWNED PROPERTY
Taxing District 34X0 - MELBOURNE BEACH
Total Acres 0.52
Subdivision --
Site Code 0120 - OCEAN FRONT
Plat Book/Page 0000/0000

Land Description PART OF GOVT LOT 3 E OF A1A AS DES IN ORB
1247 PG 383 PAR B

VALUE SUMMARY
Category 2021 2020 2019
Market Value $540,000 $540,000 $540,000
Agricultural Land Value $0 $0 $0
Assessed Value Non-School $540,000 $540,000 $540,000
Assessed Value School $540,000 $540,000 $540,000
Homestead Exemption $0 $0 $0
Additional Homestead $0 $0 $0
Other Exemptions $540,000 $540,000 $540,000
Taxable Value Non-School $0 $0 $0
Taxable Value School $0 $0 $0

SALES/TRANSFERS
Date Price Type Instrument
12/23/1999 $350,000 WD 4119/0172
06/01/1995 -- PT 3504/4536
08/01/1980 -- -- 2249/0901
05/01/1972 $66,000 PT 1247/0383

No Data Found

Page 1 of 1 Generated on 6/9/2022 11:08:13 AM

98



BCPAO,

 0 60 12030 ft

0 20 4010 m

1:750

 

µ

All BCPAO maps and/or map applications are maintained for assessment and illustrative purposes only and do not represent surveys, plats, or any other legal instrument. Likewise, measurement and location tools 
are for assessment and illustrative purposes only and do not necessarily  reflect real-world conditions. Due to the nature of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and cadastral mapping, map layers may not precisely 
align and may not represent precise location, shape, and/or legal boundaries. Only a Florida-licensed surveyor can determine legally-relevant property boundaries, elevation, distance, area, and/or location in Florida.
Map created June 9, 2022 (map data dates may vary)

99



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022  

Subject:  Updated Interlocal Agreement with Indialantic 

From:   Town Manager Mascaro 

 

Background Information:  This is the seventh year Indialantic has provided dispatch service to 

the Town of Melbourne Beach for our Fire Service.  The contract has increased from $5200 per 

year to $5400 per year, an increase of $200 per year. 

 

 

Recommendation: Review and Approved the seventh Interlocal Agreement between the Town 

of Indialantic and the Town of Melbourne Beach to provide dispatch services for the Melbourne 

Beach Volunteer Fire Department. 

 

 

Attachments: Interlocal Agreement 

100



 

 

THIS INSTRUMENT RETURN TO: 
Town Clerk 
Town of Indialantic 216 Fifth Avenue 
Indialantic, FL 32903 

 
 
 
 

EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO 

FIRE-RESCUE DISPATCH SERVICES INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this _____, day of _______, 2022, by the Town of 

Indialantic, Florida, a Florida Municipal Corporation (herein: "Indialantic"), whose address 
is 216 Fifth Avenue , Indialantic, Florida 32903;  and  the  Town  of  Melbourne  Beach, 
Florida, a Florida Municipal  Corporation {herein:  "Melbourne  Beach",) whose address is 
507 Ocean Avenue . Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951. 

 

RECITALS: 
 

WHEREAS, Indialantic has agreed to provide fire-rescue dispatch services for 

Melbourne Beach in consideration of funding to be paid by Melbourne Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the agreement between Indialantic and Melbourne Beach is set forth 

in the Fire-Rescue  Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement  which was recorded on 

January 27, 2015, in Official Records Book 7290, Page 198, Public Records of 

Brevard County, Florida (herein: the "Original Agreement");and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Agreement terminated September 30, 2015, and the 

parties extended the effective period of the Original Agreement through approval of the 
First and Second Amendments; and 

 
WHERE AS, the Seventh Amendment to the Original Agreement terminates 

September 30, 2022, and the parties are desirous of extending the effective period of the 

Original Agreement as amended ; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4. of the Agreement requires that any proposal to renew the 
Agreement must be received by both parties no later than June 1st of the year of 

renewal,  and the  parties have complied with all requirements of the Agreement for 

renew al and amendment of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Melbourne Beach Town Commission approved this Eighth 
Amendment to the Fire-Rescue Services Interlocal Agreement on the ____ day of 
_________, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Indialantic Town Council approved this Eighth Amendment to Fire- 
Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement on the ____ day of _______, 2022. 

 
  101



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten and 00/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) and 
certain other good and diverse consideration rations, each to the other paid in hand, the 
sufficiency and receipt all of which be and the same is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
desiring to be legally bound do hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Recitals. Each and all of the foregoing recitals be and the same are hereby 

incorporated herein and acknowledged to be true and correct. Failure of any of the 
foregoing recitals to be true and correct shall not operate to invalidate this Agreement. 
Certain of the terms used herein are as defined in the Original Agreement. 

 
2. Amendment of Agreement. Section 3 and Section 7 of the Agreement shall 

be amended as set forth below. In interpreting this Amendment to Fire-Rescue Dispatch 

Services Interlocal Agreement, underlined language is new text, and stricken through 

language is deleted text from the Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3. TERM: This Agreement and any amendments hereto will 
be in force and become effective upon recording in the Public Records 
of Brevard. Florida (after approval and signature by both elected 
governing bodies). The term of this Agreement will be from January 
27, 2015, the date of recording in the Public Records of Brevard 
County, Florida, of this fully executed Agreement until September 30, 
2022 September 30, 2023. The Agreement may be renewed annually. 
 
SECTION 7. COMPENSATION/PAYMENT:  Melbourne Beach agrees to 
pay to Indialantic the sum of Five Thousand Dollars, ($5,200) Five 
Thousand two hundred, ($5,400) per years for the services provided 
under Section 5 of this agreement.  Payment of services shall be made 
on a quarterly (three (3) month) basis with payment being due no later 
than the first day of January, April, July and October for services provided 
during the previous three (3) months.  Payment which arrive at Indialantic 
ten (10) Indialantic working days late shall be subject to interest charges 
as provided by Section 218.335, Florida Statutes.  In the event this 
Agreement is terminated by either party and actually terminates prior to 
the completion of a quarter, Melbourne Beach agrees to pay Indialantic a 
pro-rated amount for all whole and partial months dispatching services 
were provided. For example, if Indialantic gives notice to Melbourne 
Beach on July 10th that it is terminating the Agreement effective forty five 
(45) days later on August 24th (as provided for by Section 10. of this 
Agreement), the $1,300 $1,350 quarterly payment due to Indialantic shall 
be prorated based on a formula:  $1,300 $1,350 shall be multiplied by the 
following fraction, the numerator of which is fifty-five (55) which is the 
number of days during the quarter that service was provided and the 
denominator of which is ninety-two (92)which is the number of days 
constituting the entire quarter. 

  

102



3. Effective Date: Recordation. Melbourne Beach hereby agrees to pay for any 

costs of recordation of this Eighth Agreement to Fire-Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal 

Agreement in the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida. The recorded original hereof 
shall be returned to Indialantic for filing in its records. This Amendment to Fire-Rescue 

Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement shall become effective on the date of recording of this 

Eighth Amendment to Fire-Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement in the Public 

Records of Brevard County, Florida. 
 

Executed as of the date first above written. 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered in 
The presence of: 

 
      TOWN OF INDIALANTIC, FLORIDA 
      a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
      By:       
      Michael Casey, Town Manager 
      216 Fifth Ave., Indialantic FL 32903 
 
ATTEST:       
       Rebekah Raddon, Town Clerk  (TOWN SEAL) 
   
 
 
 
 
      
 
      TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, Florida 
      a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
      By:       
      Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 
      507 Ocean Ave.,  
      Melbourne Beach FL 32951 
 
ATTEST:       
                                     , Town Clerk  (TOWN SEAL) 
   
 

103



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:    

Meeting Date: June 15, 2022  

Subject: Landscape and Trees -9A    

From:   Robert Bitgood, Building Official 

 

Background Information 

Looking to revise Landscape and Tree ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 Recommendation: Please look at what is being proposed, and make any suggestions to revising 

the current ordinances to include hedge and wall height along A1A. I would suggest it not exceed 

6 feet in height. Trees would be exempt from height limits. 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments:  

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 

Subject:  Team Building Event  

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

 

Background Information:  

 In an effort to encourage non work related interactions between departments, strengthen the 

relationships between employees and provide a few hours of light-hearted comradery, I would 

ask the Commission’s permission to close at noon on Friday, July 1st   ( the Friday before July 4th 

holiday on Monday).  

  Participation would be required unless the employee is already schedule off that day.  We will 

have a pot luck lunch, games that require working cooperatively and games that provide an 

opportunity for employees to know each other better, as well as a little music, and possibly some 

softball and tug-of-war! 

 

 

 Recommendation: Consider and approve the Noon closing of Town Hall on Friday, July 1st.  

 

 

Attachments: none. 

112



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 

Subject:  Tourism Lagoon Project Grant  

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

 

Background Information: 

 I received a call from Debra Webster of the Space Coast Office of Tourism regarding an available 

grant which will promote Tourism in conjunction with promoting the IRL’s beauty, health and 

sustainability.  The grant has no match with a cap of $50,000 The grant application closes on 

June 22, 2022. 

Debra suggested having an artist(s) paint our storm drains with phrases and pictures that promote 

lagoon health.  We would then promote the painted drains on our social media encouraging 

residents and visitors to try and “Find the Painted Drains” and take pictures of themselves with 

our drains and post those them on Facebook. The individual can bring the drain locations to Town 

Hall to receive a town hall pin or some reward (slice of pizza, small ice cream, Cuban coffee?)  

I participated in something very similar to this while in Estes Park, Colorado.  If you took pictures 

of the 10 locations with Pica’s (like a prairie dogs) and brought the pictures to Town Hall, you 

would receive a pin.  I tried very hard to find all 10 but was unable to do so.  I really did try to “win” 

though. 

 

 Recommendation:  

Consider painting our storm drains or any other project that might promote IRL health, beauty and 

sustainability and encourage tourism in our Town. 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: None 

113



 
 
 

Town Commission Agenda Item 

Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: June 15, 2022  

Subject:  First Reading of Ordinance 2022-01 (Low Speed Vehicles) 
 
Submitted By:  Town Attorney Repperger 

Background Information: 
 
On July 21, 2021, the Town of Indialantic passed Ordinance No. 2021-06 authorizing the 
use of low speed vehicles within its jurisdiction. 
 
On March 15, 2022, the Town Commission authorized moving forward with legislative 
intent to prepare and adopt an ordinance authorizing the use of low speed vehicles within 
the Town of Melbourne Beach and offering reciprocity to low speed vehicles permitted by 
the Town of Indialantic. 
 
The attached draft ordinance creates Article IV of Chapter 30 related to the Town Traffic 
Code to authorize low speed vehicles. 
 
Low speed vehicles must apply for a permit, provide name and address, provide proof of 
insurance, current driver’s license (driving permit unacceptable), and liability waiver. 
 
Low speed vehicles must meet enumerated equipment and safety standards.  
 
Low speed vehicles must be permitted/registered with the Town on any annual basis 
(decal provided) with applicable fee (Initial registration fee of $100.00 plus a permit fee of 
$50.00 which must be renewed annually for the period January 1st to December 31st. 
The renewal permit fee shall be $50.00.).  
 
Low speed vehicles are prohibited on Highway A1A.   

Recommendation:  

Approve/Pass Ordinance 2022-01 on First Reading. 

 Attachments: 

•  Draft Ordinance 2022-01. 

114



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 

THE TRAFFIC CODE OF THE TOWN; MAKING 

FINDINGS; CREATING SECTIONS 30-100 THROUGH 30-

109, TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES, AUTHORIZING THE 

OPERATION OF LOW SPEED VEHICLES WITHIN THE 

TOWN; PROVIDING LEGISLATIVE INTENT AND 

DEFINITION; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZED USE AND 

OPERATION OF LOW SPEED VEHICLES; PROVIDING 

FOR PERMITS, APPLICATIONS, DECALS, INSPECTION, 

AND PERMIT REVOCATION; SETTING FORTH 

REQUIRED EQUIPMENT; PROVIDING FOR WAIVER OF 

CLAIMS; SETTING FORTH UNLAWFUL CONDUCT AND 

PROHIBITIONS; PROVIDING PARKING REGULATIONS; 

CREATING PROVISIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT; 

PROVIDING FOR RECIPROCITY WITH THE TOWN OF 

INDIALANTIC; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;  

PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS;  PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION 

SCHEDULE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town is granted the authority, under Section 2(b), Article VIII, of the 

State Constitution, to exercise any power for municipal purposes, except when expressly 

prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida’s Uniform Traffic Control Law, Florida Statutes Section 

316.2122, permits the use of low speed vehicles on Florida roadways under certain provisions and 

conditions of law; and  

 WHEREAS, this Ordinance is intended to permit the operation of low speed vehicles 

within the Town of Melbourne Beach pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance which are 

intended to promote the public safety, health, and welfare; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach desires to offer reciprocity to low speed 

vehicles authorized to operate within the Town of Indialantic; and  

 

115



ORD NO. 2022-01 
Page 2 
 
 

2 
 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1.  Recitals and findings. The foregoing recitals ("WHEREAS" clauses) are 

hereby fully incorporated herein by this reference as legislative findings and the intent and purpose 

of the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach. 

SECTION 2.  That Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Melbourne Beach 

is hereby amended to create Article IV which shall be titled and read as follows: 

ARTICLE IV.  LOW SPEED VEHICLES  

SECTION 3.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-100 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-100.  DEFINITIONS. 

LOW SPEED VEHICLE (LSV).  A "Low Speed Vehicle (LSV)" shall mean any four-
wheeled vehicle whose top speed is greater than 20 miles per hour but not greater than 25 miles 
per hour, including but not limited to, neighborhood electric vehicles. (See Fla. Stat. s. 320.01(41)). 

 
PERMIT/REGISTRATION. The words “permit” or “registration” mean the official 

authorization issued by the Town police department pursuant to this Article designating that a low 
speed vehicle meets the requirements of this Code. 

 
PROHIBITED STREETS.  The phase “prohibited streets” means Highway A1A. 
 
STREETS.  The word “streets” means, for purposes of this Article, all paved surfaces 

(excluding sidewalks) of streets and roads with the Town that are not prohibited streets. 

 

SECTION 4.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-101 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-101. AUTHORIZED USE AND OPERATION OF LOW SPEED VEHICLES. 

(a)  Drivers licensed to drive motor vehicles may operate low speed vehicles that have been 
issued permits by the Town on any street within the town in compliance with this Article and all 
statutes, regulations and ordinances governing traffic control, including traffic control devices and 
the operation, stopping and parking of vehicles.  Such vehicles may not be operated within the 

116



ORD NO. 2022-01 
Page 3 
 
 

3 
 

right-of-way of any prohibited street.  Further, the authorization granted by this Article to operate 
low speed vehicles on the streets of the Town does not authorize operation of such vehicles on 
sidewalks, bicycle paths, swales or other stormwater facilities or structures or within or on any 
park in the Town. 

 
(b)  The prohibition of operating a low speed vehicle on prohibited streets does not prohibit 

the operation of a low speed vehicle solely for the purpose of crossing a prohibited street at 
vehicular intersections. 

 
(c)  A permit to use a low speed vehicle issued pursuant to this Article does not allow entry 

onto private or semi-private property, including retail parking lots, private roads or condominium 
or homeowners' association common areas. Access to these areas may be regulated and restricted 
by the owners of such property. Further. such use does not allow entry or parking upon any 
property owned by another public or quasi-public entity such as Brevard County. and any of its 
departments/agencies, and the Brevard County School Board. 

 
SECTION 5.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-102 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-102.  PERMIT; REVOCATION. 

The operation of a low speed vehicle on streets shall be deemed a use permitted by the 
Town which is revocable in whole or in part upon the will of Town Commission in its legislative 
capacity based upon its consideration of the general health, safety, and welfare of the public arising 
from such use. The issuance of a permit or other permission for the operation of low speed vehicles 
on streets shall not limit or otherwise preclude the Town Commission from amending this Article 
IV, repealing this Article IV in its entirety, contracting or expanding the streets and prohibited 
streets, or changing the designation of crossing points for prohibited streets. Any person operating 
a low speed vehicle within the Town pursuant to a permit issued by the Town shall do so on the 
condition that there shall be no claim for any monetary loss or other claim for the loss of allowed 
low speed vehicle operation within the Town or any monetary claim based upon a claim for action 
in reliance on the provisions of this Article. The Town Commission retains the unlimited legal 
authority to revoke, amend, or otherwise legislate regarding the operation of low speed vehicles 
on Town streets without liability of any kind arising from its legislative decisions. The issuance 
by the Town of a Town permit is not and shall not be construed to be a contract between the Town 
and the registrant or any operator of a low speed vehicle. Issuance of a permit by the Town does 
not authorize the operation of a low speed vehicle in any other municipal jurisdiction outside of 
the Town or area of unincorporated Brevard County, except as to the application of reciprocity 
with the Town of Indialantic as provided in § 30-109. 

 
SECTION 6.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-103 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-103.  WAIVER OF CLAIMS. 

117



ORD NO. 2022-01 
Page 4 
 
 

4 
 

 
By acceptance of a permit to register with the Town and operate a low speed vehicle by 

any authorized person, and all persons who are passengers in such vehicle, shall be deemed to have 
waived any claim against the Town for its legislative decision to allow operation of such low speed 
vehicles on streets in compliance with this Article. The consideration and adoption of this Article 
by Town Commission is declared to be a legislative act of the Town. 

 
SECTION 7.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-104 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-104.  PERMIT APPLICATION; REGISTRATION; DECAL. 

 

(a) All low speed vehicles operating on streets shall, prior to such operation, be registered 
with the Town on an annual basis as provided herein. A registration decal provided by the Town 
must be visibly affixed to each registered low speed vehicle on the rear bumper of that vehicle. 
The registration decal must be current at all times the low speed vehicle is operated on streets. 

 
(b)  Each person wishing to operate a low speed vehicle on streets must apply for a permit 

with the police department to operate and register that vehicle with the Town. The application shall 
include the name(s) and address(es) of the owner(s) of the low speed vehicle, copies of current 
driver's license(s) of all persons who own and will operate the low speed vehicle, and proof of 
insurance required by Fla. Stat. ss. 316.2122 and 320.02, which insurance must be kept in effect 
at all times.  (See Fla. Stat. s. 320.02(5)). 

 
(c)  Each permit application shall be accompanied by a $150.00 permit/registration fee 

which shall cover the period January 1st to December 31st. Any permit/registration issued by the 
Town shall include a registration fee of $100.00 and a permit fee of $50.00, and must be renewed 
annually for the period January 1st to December 31st. The renewal permit fee shall be $50.00 for 
each year of renewal of the same low speed vehicle. 

 
SECTION 8.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-105 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-105.  INSPECTION; REQUIRED EQUIPMENT. 

 
(a) Any person desiring to register a low speed vehicle for operation within the Town 

shall present the low speed vehicle to the police department for inspection regarding all required 
safety equipment at such place as the town police department shall designate for such inspections. 

 

(b) In order for any low speed vehicle to be registered and operate within the town, 
said vehicle must meet the following minimum safety requirements which must be in operating 
order: 

(1) Headlamps; 
(2) Florida Department of Transportation approved windshield; 

118



ORD NO. 2022-01 
Page 5 
 
 

5 
 

(3) Driver-side and interior rear-view mirrors or both driver-side and passenger-side 
mirrors; 

(4) Parking lamps; 
(5) Front and rear turn signals meeting the minimum standards of Fla. Stat. s. 

316.234(2); 
(6) Brake lamps meeting the minimum requirements of Fla. Stat. s. 316.234(1); 
(7) Side reflex reflectors; 
(8) Horn; 
(9) Low speed vehicle (LSV) triangle reflector affixed to the rear of the vehicle; 
(10) Seat belt for each designated seat; 
(11) Tires meeting manufacturer’s specifications; 
(12) Reliable steering apparatus; and  
(13) Vehicle identification number (VIN) or manufacturer’s serial number. 
(See Fla. Stat. Sec. 316.2122(2) and 49 C.F.R. s. 571.500) 

 
(c) Upon the successful completion of an inspection performed by the Town police 

department, and as a condition of issuance of any registration and decal, the owner(s) must sign 
an acknowledgment(i) recognizing the necessity of obtaining annual inspections/registration for 
any low speed vehicle, together with payment of an annual registration fee, (ii) receipt of a copy 
of this Article IV governing low speed vehicles; and (iii) a waiver of liability satisfying the 
requirements of § 30-103. 

 
SECTION 9.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-106 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-106.  PROHIBITIONS. 

 
It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a low speed vehicle in the Town: 
  

(1) Where any of the required equipment or information set forth in § 30-105 
(b) is either inoperative or missing; 

(2) Without a current valid motor vehicle operator's driver's license; 
(3) Without insurance required by this article or state law. Proof of insurance 

must be presented to a law enforcement officer upon request; 
(4) On the right-of-way of any prohibited street (except to properly cross to the 

other side as provided in this article), or on any sidewalk. bike path. swale or other 
stormwater facilities or structures or within or on any park in the Town; 

(5) Without a valid registration issued by the Town or properly exhibited 
registration decal issued by the Town; 

(6) That obstructs or interferes with normal traffic flow; 
(7) Which carries more passengers than the registered low speed vehicle was 

designed, or for which there are more passengers than there are seat belts provided; 
(8) Where the driver and/or any passengers are not properly using their seat 

belts or fail to comply with any laws governing use of child restraint equipment. Further. 
no child shall be allowed to sit in the lap of the driver or any passenger. The driver and all 

119



ORD NO. 2022-01 
Page 6 
 
 

6 
 

passengers must remain seated with their seatbelts properly fastened at all times the low 
speed vehicle is in motion, and no parts of the body of any occupant of the low speed 
vehicle may extend outside the vehicle; 

(9) In violation of any state traffic law or regulation or Town Code provision 
of the Town applicable to the operation of motor vehicles; or 

(10) On any street where the posted speed limit is greater than 35 miles per hour. 
 

SECTION 10.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-107 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-107.  PARKING. 

 
Low speed vehicles shall comply with all vehicular parking regulations of the Town. 
 
SECTION 11.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-108 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-108.  ENFORCEMENT. 

 

(a) Violations of this Article shall be enforced by the police department pursuant to 
Fla. Stat. ch. 316 and Fla. Stat. ch. 320. and applicable provisions of the Town Code. 

 
(b) In addition to enforcement pursuant to subsection (a) above, any person operating 

a low speed vehicle without a proper registration or decal issued by the Town shall be fined 
$100.00 for the first violation, $150.00 for the second violation and $200.00 for the third and each 
subsequent violation. 

 
SECTION 12.  That Article IV of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach is hereby amended to create Section 30-109 which be titled and read as follows: 

§ 30-109.  RECIPROCITY WITH THE TOWN OF INDIALANTIC. 

 

(a) Any low speed vehicle authorized to operate within the Town of Indialantic  
pursuant to Article IV of Chapter 32 of the Town of Indialantic Code of Ordinances may operate 
with the Town of Melbourne Beach.  

 
(b) Any low speed vehicle authorized to operate within the Town of Melbourne Beach 

pursuant to this Article, may operate within the Town of Indialantic if authorized under Article IV 
of Chapter 32 of the Town of Indialantic Code of Ordinances.   

 

SECTION 13.   Severability. 

 

120



ORD NO. 2022-01 
Page 7 
 
 

7 
 

In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this Ordinance shall be 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly unenforceable or invalid for any 
reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any of the 
other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, sentences, or sections of this Ordinance, and this 
Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable term, provision, 
clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

 
SECTION 14.  Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict.  All ordinances or resolutions 

or parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 14.  Effective Date. 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective ________________________, 2022. 
 

SECTION 15.  Adoption Schedule.  
 
 PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 15th day of June, 2022, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne 

Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 20th day of July, 2022. 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
 

By:____________________________ 
        WYATT HOOVER, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
      (TOWN SEAL) 
_______________________ 
Amber Brown,  
Interim Town Clerk 

 

121



       Town Manager Report for June 2022 
 

 

 

1. Attended P&Z Meeting with Robert Bitgood 

2. Attended (Monday) SCLOC dinner with Vice Mayor Barton and Commissioner Quarrie. 

3. Attended meeting with Town Attorney Repperger, Robert Bitgood, Nathan Meloon and Paul 

Grycko to resolve a dispute over a concrete slab and portable spa. 

4. Attended Executive Session with Commission. 

5. EAB requested a rain barrel be placed on the Town Hall Complex to encourage others to use rain 

barrels.  Would the Commission like the barrel painted? 

6. The resident workshop for the S.E.A. project will be scheduled for August as the resident 

coordinator isn’t available during July. 

7. The Community Center roof installation will begin on June 23rd. 

8. Met with James Moore of EVPlug for an evaluation on the installation of a dual electric charging 

station.  I will be receiving a quote. Currently working with Cape Canaveral, Satellite Beach and 

Palm Bay to install Level II charging stations. 

9. Congratulations to Dr. Kelli Hunsucker of our EAB Board for being honored with the John Bleakley 

Marine Science Educator of the Year award by the Florida Marine Science Educators Association. 

10. All departments are posting identical hurricane awareness messages on their social media every 

Thursday now that hurricane season has begun. 

11. The Police Department, joined by Public Works and hopefully the Fire Department will begin their 

Summer Safety Series again this year. 

12. First draft of annual budget presented to the Commission on June 8, 2022. 

13. Sent an email to Haley Panton (Parks Board) asking her to meet with me to discuss the splash pad. 

Waiting for a response. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

122



TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 
BREVARD COUNTY’S OLDEST BEACH COMMUNITY ESTABLISHED 1883 

507 OCEAN AVENUE, MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951-2523 
(321) 724-5860         FAX: (321) 984-8994       www.melbournebeachfl.org 

 
 
 

Building Department Report   
 

MAY 2022 
 

 
 

 54 permits issued  

 Construction Value of the 54 permits totaled $873,712.00 

 Total Permit fees $15,011.02 

 105 inspections completed 

 62 plans reviewed 

 2 Single-Family Site Plan review for P&Z 

 3 BTR reviews 

 3 Vacation Rental inspections 

 0 New homes 
 

123



124



125



Public Works Activities 

May 2022 

 

Sunset Blvd. project – over 2 weeks of this month was spent on this project because it was a large 

undertaking.  Completed and to date seems to have helped with stormwater.   

Founders Day prep 

Assisted FD constructing shade covers in Ryckman Park 

Landscaped areas of Ryckman House and new parking areas Ryckman 

Posted Founders day banners 

Plants installed new planters at Ocean Park 

New flag Ocean Park turnaround 

Toilet part replaced restroom Ocean Park – maintenance 

Installed one in ground and one tree mount up lighting oaks Ryckman Park 

Trimmed Loggerhead park area 

Watered oaks on oak – now have tank and pump to allow more frequent watering 

 

 

126



 

  
Monthly Report Page 1 

 

   
 
 
 
 
Operations:  

• In May 2022, The Department responded to 1304 calls for service and 52 house checks.   

Activity: 

• 1 Arrest 

• 1 Traffic  (No Driver's License) 

• 1 Capias 

• 24 Citations 

• 95 Traffic Stops 

• 105 Traffic Enforcement 

• 6 Traffic Complaint 

• 67 Parking Citations 

Our radar trailers are operational and are being used throughout the Town.   

 PD News 

• Movies in the Park was successful. It was held in the Community Center due to inclement weather.    

• Founders Day was successful from the safety standpoint of the Police Department. Thank you to all the 

officers and our Administrative Assistant, Amber Brown, for your hard work keeping our residents and 

visitors safe.   

• We participated in the annual "Hometown Heros" event at The Melbourne Square Mall on May 21, 2022. 

Thank you, Sgt. Sadler, Ofc. Tejeda, Police Chaplin Finlayson and Admin Assist Megan Miller.  

Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Monthly Report 

May 2022 

 

127



Monthly Report Page 2 
 

 

The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our Town safe, 

which is our #1 priority.  

Please see the attachments:  

• Sergeant's monthly reports 

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

 

 

128



MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD

Total Calls for Service 1356 1049 957 937 940 3883

Total Felonies 0 10 8 5 5 28

Total Misdemeanors 6 16 13 3 7 39

Total Capias Requests 1 3 2 2 1 8

Total Traffic Arrests 1 1 3 0 0 4

Total Other Arrests 0 7 5 2 4 18

911 Investigation 21 19 23 17 14 94

Alarm Business 3 3 18 1 4 29

Alarm Residence 7 2 1 3 0 13

Aggravated Assault 0 0 0 0 1 1

Animal Complaint 6 1 5 7 10 29

AOA Fire 1 2 1 3 0 7

AOA LEO 9 20 27 19 22 97

Assist Citizen 12 6 11 9 5 43

Assist DCF 0 1 1 1 0 3

Assist Motorist 2 1 2 1 0 6

Attempt To Contact 3 5 1 3 5 17

Baker Act 0 1 1 1 1 4

Battery 2 1 2 2 0 7

Burglary - Residential 0 0 2 0 0 2

Burglary - Vehicle 0 2 1 0 1 4

Civil Matter 2 2 1 2 2 9

Crash 4 6 7 8 2 27

Criminal Mischief 2 2 1 2 0 7

Deceased Person 0 1 0 0 0 1

Disturbance 7 0 2 2 0 11

Disturbance Domestic 2 1 3 2 1 9

Disturbance Domestic Battery 0 2 1 0 1 4

Disturbance Noise 3 3 3 0 1 10

Fraud/Forgery 0 1 2 1 0 4

House Checks 52 71 41 66 92 322

Illegal Parking 68 41 47 68 39 263

Information 9 23 7 15 8 62

Injured/Ill Person 28 10 24 18 17 97

MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD

Melbourne Beach Police Department

Melbourne Beach Police Department 129



Intoxicated Driver 0 1 0 0 1 2

Intoxicated Person 0 1 0 0 1 2

Investigation 0 4 2 1 2 9

Narcotics 0 1 0 1 0 2

Open Door 5 4 1 5 5 20

Parking Citations 67 50 71 79 50 317

Patrol Area 103 71 65 86 80 405

Patrol Area Business 216 311 179 170 169 1045

Patrol Area Residential 487 326 244 226 320 1603

Patrol Area School 31 43 43 44 38 199

Property Confiscated 0 1 4 1 0 6

Property Found 4 4 3 3 0 14

Property Lost 1 0 0 1 0 2

Reckless Driving 5 4 5 6 6 26

Retail Theft 1 0 0 0 0 1

Shooting in the Area 0 0 0 0 1 1

Soliciting 0 0 0 1 0 1

Special Detail 1 0 1 0 1 3

Special Response ATV 0 0 1 0 0 1

Special Response Drone 2 0 0 0 0 2

Standby-Keep the Peace 0 2 1 0 1 4

Suspicious Incident 15 7 8 8 7 45

Suspicious Person 11 12 16 9 3 51

Suspicious Vehicle 19 8 19 19 13 78

Theft 2 2 2 0 1 7

Traffic Citations 24 43 28 28 25 148

Traffic Complaint 6 1 4 1 2 14

Traffic Enforcement 105 89 92 105 83 474

Traffic Stop 95 103 97 110 102 507

Traffic Obstruction 2 0 1 0 0 3

Trespass 3 2 3 1 0 9

Vehicle Inspection 1 1 3 3 2 10

Vehicle Repo/Tow 0 0 1 0 0 1

Wanted Person 0 0 1 0 0 1

0

0

0

Vehicle Mileage MAY APR MAR FEB JAN

Car 360 910 957 590 511 379 2437

Car 361 798 709 491 774 872 2846

Melbourne Beach Police Department
130



Car 363 648 1195 1088 1047 885 4215

Car 364 80 107 77 94 86 364

Car 366 813 678 838 908 978 3402

Car 367 1206 973 821 901 1354 4049

ATV 1 23 11 21 0 0 32

ATV 2 0 0 0 0 8 8

131



 

 

   

 
 

Monthly Report May 2022 

 
 
 

 05/11- Male subject was trespassed from a business in the 900 block of Oak Street. 

 05/12- Male/Female reported a domestic incident in the 400 block of Hibiscus Trail. 
Male/Female refused to provide any suspect information.  

 05/14- Male driver was stopped for no tail lights at Oak Street and Atlantic Street. The driver 
was arrested for no driver’s license ever issued. 

 05/20- Disturbance in the 900 block of Oak Street. Three subjects were trespassed from the 
location.  

 05/21- Criminal mischief in the 500 block of Ocean Avenue. Unknown suspect, and the case 
is still under investigation.  

 05/21- Male subject was placed under a Marchmen Act in the 300 block of Ocean Avenue. 

 05/28- Two male subjects were in a disturbance in the area of Fourth Avenue and Orange 
Street. The victim filled out a decline to prosecute.   

 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Jason Hinchman 
Sergeant 

507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 
Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 

132



 

 

   

 

 Sgt. Sadler Monthly Report May 2022 

 

 

5/7- Domestic verbal in the 700 block of Riverside Drive. Female placed under a Marchman Act. 

 

5/7- Retail theft in the 900 block of Oak Street. Stolen goods recovered by MBPD. 

 

5/8- Juvenile found in the 1200 block of Oak Street past curfew who left a domestic disturbance 

originating in Indian Harbour Beach. We assisted IHBPD by returning the juvenile to them. 

 

5/8- Traffic crash in the area of Oak Street and Ocean Avenue. No injuries and no major damage. 

 

5/10- Traffic crash in the area of Atlantic Street and Third Avenue. No injuries and no major 

damage. 

 

5/15- Missing endangered juvenile located in the 300 block of Ocean Avenue. Juvenile was 

placed under a Baker Act and a capias filed for retail theft from the 900 block of Oak Street. 

 

5/18- Theft of a bicycle in the area of Fifth Avenue and Oak Street. Case pending investigation. 

 

5/24- Male was issued a Trespass Warning in the 900 block of Oak Street. 

 

5/25- Battery in the 1000 block of Atlantic Street. The victim declined prosecution. 

 

 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Jason Sadler 
Sergeant 

507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 
Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 

133



Page 1 of 1 

Melbourne Beach 
Vol. Fire Department 

507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

(321)724-1736 
FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org 

 
 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
May 2022 

 
 

 
Incident Response 

For the month of May 2022, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 
responded to 27 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer 
personnel per paged out call for the month was 11.    

Breakdown: 

• 11 Fire/Rescue 911 Calls (paged out) 
• 3 Special Incidents (Fire Inspections) 
• 4 First Responder EMS Incidents 
• 1 Special Event Standby (Founders Day EMS coverage) 
• 2 Assist Other Agency (MBPD & MBPW) 
• 1 Hydrant Inspections (Entire jurisdiction) 
• 2 Public Service calls 
• 1 Investigate Citizen Complaint (possible broken water line) 
• 2 False Calls 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
134

mailto:FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org


Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 6/10/2022 7:21:42 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2022-62 05/03/2022 300 3rd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/03/2022 10:26 05/03/2022 10:49

2022-63 05/04/2022 405 5th AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/04/2022 10:49 05/04/2022 11:20

2022-64 05/04/2022 400 Avenue B , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/04/2022 13:33 05/04/2022 13:53

2022-65 05/04/2022 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 05/04/2022 14:42 05/04/2022 14:54

2022-66 05/07/2022 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Cover assignment, standby, moveup 05/07/2022 05:38 05/07/2022 23:20

2022-67 05/10/2022 1501 Shannon AVE , Indialantic, FL, 32903 Dispatched & cancelled en route 05/10/2022 03:44 05/10/2022 03:53

2022-68 05/10/2022 Intersection  3rd AVE  / Oak St, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 05/10/2022 10:07 05/10/2022 10:17

2022-69 05/10/2022 330 5th AVE , Indialantic, FL, 32903 False alarm or false call, other 05/10/2022 10:51 05/10/2022 11:09

2022-70 05/10/2022 1200 Orange ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 05/10/2022 16:05 05/10/2022 16:13

2022-71 05/10/2022 6355 Florida A1A HWY , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Surf rescue 05/10/2022 16:54 05/10/2022 18:35

2022-72 05/12/2022 Intersection  Colony ST  / Oak St, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Citizen complaint 05/12/2022 18:53 05/12/2022 19:08

2022-73 05/13/2022 2100 Oak ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 05/13/2022 09:30 05/13/2022 10:11

2022-74 05/15/2022 2301 N Highway A1A , Indialantic, FL, 32903 Surf rescue 05/15/2022 08:56 05/15/2022 08:57

2022-75 05/17/2022 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Service Call, other 05/17/2022 19:00 05/17/2022 20:59

2022-76 05/17/2022  2nd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 05/17/2022 21:01 05/17/2022 21:13

2022-77 05/20/2022 2207 Atlantic ST Common Areas, Melbourne Beach, FL, 
32951 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 05/20/2022 10:13 05/20/2022 10:44

2022-78 05/23/2022 2203 Atlantic ST Common Areas, Melbourne Beach, FL, 
32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 05/23/2022 01:51 05/23/2022 02:35

2022-79 05/24/2022 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Emergency medical service, other 05/24/2022 16:03 05/24/2022 16:28

2022-80 05/24/2022 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 False alarm or false call, other 05/24/2022 16:03 05/24/2022 16:28

2022-81 05/25/2022 2050 Atlantic ST 316, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 05/25/2022 09:04 05/25/2022 09:17

2022-82 05/25/2022 Directions  Oak ST  / Oak Street & Bicentennial Park, Melbourne Beach, 
FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 05/25/2022 10:45 05/25/2022 12:19

2022-83 05/25/2022 809 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Surf rescue 05/25/2022 13:24 05/25/2022 13:46

2022-84 05/26/2022 2545 S Hwy A1A , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Surf rescue 05/26/2022 20:09 05/26/2022 20:46

2022-85 05/28/2022 140 6th AVE , Indialantic, FL, 32903 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 05/28/2022 20:10 05/28/2022 20:26

2022-86 05/29/2022 809 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 05/29/2022 13:47 05/29/2022 14:43

2022-87 05/30/2022 325 Hibiscus TRL , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Outside rubbish fire, other 05/30/2022 13:51 05/30/2022 14:39

2022-88 05/31/2022 2203 Atlantic ST Common Areas, Melbourne Beach, FL, 
32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 05/31/2022 09:47 05/31/2022 10:04

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 05/01/2022 | End Date: 05/31/2022

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1

135



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 6/10/2022 7:38:01 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON 
APPARATUS

NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2022-62 5/3/2022 10:26:57 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2022-63 5/4/2022 10:49:09 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2022-64 5/4/2022 13:33:37 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2022-65 5/4/2022 14:42:36 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 19112 1 1 2

2022-66 5/7/2022 05:38:10 571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup 19112 2 6 8

2022-67 5/10/2022 03:44:07 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 4 4 8

2022-68 5/10/2022 10:07:51 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 1 0 1

2022-69 5/10/2022 10:51:28 700 - False alarm or false call, other 19112 1 0 1

2022-70 5/10/2022 16:05:42 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 19112 1 0 1

2022-71 5/10/2022 16:54:20 364 - Surf rescue 19112 12 7 19

2022-72 5/12/2022 18:53:10 911 - Citizen complaint 19112 1 0 1

2022-73 5/13/2022 09:30:00 553 - Public service 19112 1 0 1

2022-74 5/15/2022 08:56:50 364 - Surf rescue 19112 2 6 8

2022-75 5/17/2022 19:00:00 500 - Service Call, other 19112 9 4 13

2022-76 5/17/2022 21:01:17 622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch 
address 19112 2 11 13

2022-77 5/20/2022 10:13:21 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 19112 4 5 9

2022-78 5/23/2022 01:51:41 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 10 1 11

2022-79 5/24/2022 16:03:46 320 - Emergency medical service, other 19112 1 2 3

2022-80 5/24/2022 16:03:46 700 - False alarm or false call, other 19112 1 0 1

2022-81 5/25/2022 09:04:58 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 19112 2 0 2

2022-82 5/25/2022 10:45:02 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 2 0 2

2022-83 5/25/2022 13:24:48 364 - Surf rescue 19112 5 3 8

2022-84 5/26/2022 20:09:04 364 - Surf rescue 19112 10 9 19

2022-85 5/28/2022 20:10:16 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 6 7 13

2022-86 5/29/2022 13:47:38 553 - Public service 19112 2 0 2

2022-87 5/30/2022 13:51:26 150 - Outside rubbish fire, other 19112 6 2 8

2022-88 5/31/2022 09:47:55 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 6 3 9

TOTAL # OF INCIDENTS: 27 AVERAGES: 3.5 2.6 6.1

Start Date: 05/01/2022 | End Date: 05/31/2022

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1

**

**

**

**
**
**

**
**
**

**
**

Note: 900 series "Special Incidents" include fire inspections performed.

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls:                  6.1               5.3            11.4 
             (Paged out calls only)

Total # of incidents 
paged out for volunteer 
emergency response: 11

136



  
 

1 
 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Finance Department 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 

From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

Date: June 9, 2022 

Re: May 2022   

We are in the eighth month of our fiscal year 2022. The target expenditure rate for May is 66.67%. All departments 

are managing their expenditures even though several lines are over the targeted expenditure rate. There are budget 

items over the target rate but within the anticipated spending of that budget line. There are budget items over the 

target rate that are being monitored for spending within that budget line. There are items that are over expended. 

Some budget lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health insurance are 

paid on a monthly basis. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 67.18%. The Departmental 

expenditure rate breakdown is as follows:   

 

Legislative:   60.36% 

  Executive:                53.98% 

  Finance:  77.88%  

  Legal:                 61.53% 

  Comp & Plan:     38.75% 

  General Services:  63.47% 

  Law Enforcement:  61.64% 

  Fire:    60.22% 

  Code:    65.44% 

  Public Works:     67.31% 

  Parks:    74.30% 

   

 

Discussion Items:  

 

Pre-employment expense is over expended. The loss of the previous Admin Assistant and the cost to advertise the 

new Finance Clerk position was not anticipated.   

 

The increase in equipment maintenance in the General Fund, Department 19, is due to the air conditioning unit 

replacement.  

 

Public Works has seen a rise in cost for maintenance supplies and to maintain the Town Buildings and Grounds. 

These line items are over expended but the overall Public Works budget is within the budget limits.   

 

Due to inflation all departments have experienced a rise in the cost of operations.  Despite this all departments are 

doing a good job of staying within their overall budgets.  

 

137



  
 

2 
 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Finance Department 

 

 

 

 

The Town received $19,968.34 in Parking Revenue for May. The breakdown is as follows:  

Ocean Park:      $11,929.38 

Ryckman Park: $  8,038.96  

 

The Town has been awarded $2,534 from Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT) through the Safety Grant Award 

Program.       

  

 

 

138



EXPENDITURE FOR TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH                                                                      

Balance As Of 05/31/2022                                                                                        

Fund: 001 GENERAL FUND

Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

001-00-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 (146,500.00) 100.00

    Total Dept 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (146,500.00) 100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 11 LEGISLATIVE

001-11-500.11.00 EXECUTIVE SALARIES 16,200.00 16,200.00 0.00 5,398.08 66.68

001-11-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 60,705.00 60,705.00 0.00 18,436.59 69.63

001-11-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 4,644.00 4,644.00 0.00 630.22 86.43

001-11-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 6,568.00 6,568.00 0.00 2,102.73 67.99

001-11-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 8,568.00 8,568.00 0.00 2,046.88 76.11

001-11-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 70.00 70.00 0.00 24.96 64.34

001-11-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 194.00 194.00 0.00 124.84 35.65

001-11-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00

001-11-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 3,640.00 3,640.00 0.00 3,111.25 14.53

001-11-510.40.10 TRAVEL & MEETINGS - STAFF 2,788.00 2,788.00 0.00 2,768.33 0.71

001-11-510.47.00 PRINTING 5,015.00 5,015.00 0.00 3,410.16 32.00

001-11-510.48.00 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 600.00 600.00 0.00 96.53 83.91

001-11-510.48.40 LEGAL NOTICES 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 6,373.49 36.27

001-11-510.49.50 ELECTION EXPENSE 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00

001-11-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 875.00 875.00 0.00 190.00 78.29

001-11-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 4,410.00 4,410.00 0.00 4,110.00 6.80

001-11-510.64.00 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00

001-11-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 7,421.00 7,421.00 0.00 511.34 93.11

136,448.00 136,448.00 0.00 54,085.40 60.36

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 12 EXECUTIVE
139



001-12-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 121,960.00 121,960.00 0.00 55,853.16 54.20

001-12-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 9,330.00 9,330.00 0.00 3,620.85 61.19

001-12-500.22.01 RETIREMENT - ICMA 10,820.00 10,820.00 0.00 3,817.08 64.72

001-12-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 2,376.00 2,376.00 0.00 2,376.00 0.00

001-12-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 25,697.00 25,697.00 0.00 14,639.58 43.03

001-12-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 735.00 735.00 0.00 224.25 69.49

001-12-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 390.00 390.00 0.00 286.33 26.58

001-12-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 1,320.00 1,320.00 0.00 513.86 61.07

001-12-510.52.50 GAS & OIL 2,400.00 2,400.00 0.00 800.00 66.67

001-12-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 895.00 895.00 0.00 349.00 61.01

001-12-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 450.00 450.00 0.00 450.00 0.00

176,373.00 176,373.00 0.00 82,930.11 52.98

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 13 FINANCE

001-13-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 61,234.00 61,234.00 0.00 18,693.46 69.47

001-13-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 4,684.00 4,684.00 0.00 1,538.03 67.16

001-13-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 6,626.00 6,626.00 0.00 2,131.28 67.83

001-13-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 7,835.00 7,835.00 0.00 309.45 96.05

001-13-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 70.00 70.00 0.00 13.70 80.43

001-13-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 196.00 196.00 0.00 126.56 35.43

001-13-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 1,366.47 80.48

001-13-510.32.00 AUDITING SERVICES 23,000.00 23,000.00 0.00 (50.00) 100.22

001-13-510.32.90 BANKING FEES 4,700.00 4,700.00 0.00 31.44 99.33

001-13-510.32.95 IPS BANKING FEE 3,708.00 3,708.00 0.00 1,185.10 68.04

001-13-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 1,957.24 6.80

001-13-510.41.15 IPS COMMUNICATION FEE 660.00 660.00 0.00 (697.61) 205.70

001-13-510.47.00 PRINTING 180.00 180.00 0.00 49.02 72.77

001-13-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 60.00 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.00

001-13-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 800.00 800.00 0.00 345.00 56.88

001-13-764.10.00 Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00

123,003.00 123,003.00 0.00 27,209.14 77.88

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

140



Department: 14 LEGAL COUNSEL

001-14-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 96,000.00 96,000.00 0.00 39,124.20 59.25

001-14-510.31.01 CODE ENFORCEMENT ATTORNEY 2,250.00 2,250.00 0.00 (1,326.49) 158.96

98,250.00 98,250.00 0.00 37,797.71 61.53

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 15 COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING

001-15-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 12,250.00 38.75

20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 12,250.00 38.75

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 19 GENERAL SERVICES

001-19-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,520.00 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

001-19-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,020.00 4,020.00 0.00 1,540.00 61.69

001-19-510.31.11 SECURITY 2,300.00 2,300.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.00

001-19-510.34.10 JANITORIAL SERVICES 15,108.00 15,108.00 0.00 3,777.00 75.00

001-19-510.35.00 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXP 135.00 135.00 0.00 (231.99) 271.84

001-19-510.41.00 TELEPHONE 10,992.00 10,992.00 0.00 3,033.82 72.40

001-19-510.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 43,608.00 43,608.00 0.00 10,515.89 75.89

001-19-510.43.00 STREET LIGHTS 46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 14,981.00 67.43

001-19-510.43.10 ELECTRICITY 28,704.00 28,704.00 0.00 10,864.97 62.15

001-19-510.43.20 WATER & SEWER 1,560.00 1,560.00 0.00 (1,125.00) 172.12

001-19-510.43.50 WASTE TAX SERVICE 2,807.00 2,807.00 0.00 621.25 77.87

001-19-510.45.00 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 68,412.00 68,412.00 0.00 13,707.00 79.96

001-19-510.45.01 FLOOD INSURANCE 3,751.00 3,751.00 0.00 3,751.00 0.00

001-19-510.45.02 PROPERTY INSURANCE 50,920.00 50,920.00 0.00 6,694.75 86.85

001-19-510.45.03 AUTO INSURANCE 7,788.00 7,788.00 0.00 2,143.50 72.48

001-19-510.46.10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4,232.00 4,232.00 0.00 1,640.65 61.23

001-19-510.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 14,500.00 14,500.00 0.00 (2,305.50) 115.90

001-19-510.46.36 PEST CONTROL 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 1,115.36 62.82

001-19-510.46.41 MOWING CONTRACT 22,410.00 22,410.00 0.00 5,624.00 74.90

001-19-510.47.00 PRINTING 600.00 600.00 0.00 118.37 80.27

001-19-510.49.48 ENV. BOARDS EXPENSE 3,420.00 3,420.00 0.00 (49.81) 101.46

001-19-510.49.98 CONTINGENCY 30,000.00 9,756.97 0.00 9,756.97 0.00
141



001-19-510.49.99 MISCELLANEOUS 300.00 300.00 0.00 (74.65) 124.88

001-19-510.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 9,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 587.17 93.48

001-19-510.51.10 POSTAGE 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 295.13 75.41

001-19-510.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 620.99 79.30

001-19-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 320.00 320.00 0.00 (2.03) 100.63

001-19-510.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 174,261.00 181,066.83 0.00 105,618.50 41.67

001-19-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 17,521.00 17,521.00 0.00 8,677.96 50.47

572,389.00 558,951.80 0.00 204,196.30 63.47

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMENT

001-21-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 570,664.00 632,664.00 0.00 228,735.86 63.85

001-21-500.12.50 HOLIDAY PAY 19,000.00 19,000.00 0.00 (981.04) 105.16

001-21-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 30,300.00 30,300.00 0.00 21,153.70 30.19

001-21-500.14.16 HURRICANE PAY 17,950.00 17,950.00 0.00 17,950.00 0.00

001-21-500.15.00 EDUCATION INCENTIVE PAY 6,600.00 6,600.00 0.00 1,338.57 79.72

001-21-500.15.01 FIRST RESPONDER 7,920.00 7,920.00 0.00 3,488.57 55.95

001-21-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 50,856.00 50,856.00 0.00 18,125.14 64.36

001-21-500.22.02 POLICE PENSION 232,807.00 232,807.00 0.00 125,807.00 45.96

001-21-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 3,813.00 3,813.00 0.00 1,491.84 60.87

001-21-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 83,152.00 83,152.00 0.00 4,647.95 94.41

001-21-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 623.42 75.06

001-21-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

001-21-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 14,438.00 14,438.00 0.00 1,827.00 87.35

001-21-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 2,127.00 2,127.00 0.00 1,447.17 31.96

001-21-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 725.00 725.00 0.00 375.00 48.28

001-21-520.34.40 DISPATCHING SERVICES 17,785.00 17,785.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

001-21-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 2,240.00 2,240.00 0.00 1,268.91 43.35

001-21-520.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 4,488.00 4,488.00 0.00 2,949.16 34.29

001-21-520.46.10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 4,684.16 14.83

001-21-520.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 1,690.09 15.50

001-21-520.46.16 RADAR CALIBRATION 700.00 700.00 0.00 375.00 46.43

001-21-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 646.91 94.61

001-21-520.48.00 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 (532.07) 144.34

142



001-21-520.48.50 CRIME PREVENTION 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00 341.89 68.92

001-21-520.49.99 MISCELLANEOUS 100.00 100.00 0.00 (146.99) 246.99

001-21-520.51.10 POSTAGE 350.00 350.00 0.00 317.00 9.43

001-21-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 6,600.00 6,600.00 0.00 3,315.98 49.76

001-21-520.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 8,328.00 8,328.00 0.00 6,994.50 16.01

001-21-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 13,000.00 13,000.00 0.00 1,513.44 88.36

001-21-520.52.70 MEDICAL 600.00 600.00 0.00 (781.29) 230.22

001-21-520.52.90 OPERATING SUPPLIES 3,720.00 3,720.00 0.00 2,411.31 35.18

001-21-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,955.00 1,955.00 0.00 1,212.17 38.00

001-21-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 5,400.00 5,400.00 0.00 2,444.00 54.74

001-21-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 58,795.00 58,795.00 0.00 24,580.92 58.19

001-21-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 14,738.00 14,738.00 0.00 6,529.83 55.69

1,204,451.00 1,266,451.00 0.00 485,845.10 61.64

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 22 FIRE CONTROL

001-22-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 85,610.00 85,610.00 0.00 46,172.88 46.07

001-22-500.14.50 STIPEND PAYROLL 55,040.00 55,040.00 0.00 15,529.83 71.78

001-22-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 7,643.00 7,643.00 0.00 970.45 87.30

001-22-500.22.01 RETIREMENT - ICMA 6,562.00 6,562.00 0.00 2,223.36 66.12

001-22-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 4,968.00 4,968.00 0.00 414.99 91.65

001-22-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 162.00 162.00 0.00 111.33 31.28

001-22-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 180.00 180.00 0.00 51.00 71.67

001-22-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 7,920.00 7,920.00 0.00 354.50 95.52

001-22-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 194.00 194.00 0.00 110.25 43.17

001-22-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,300.00 14.00

001-22-520.34.40 DISPATCHING SERVICES 5,200.00 5,200.00 0.00 2,600.00 50.00

001-22-520.35.00 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXPENSE 1,225.00 1,225.00 0.00 861.00 29.71

001-22-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 500.00 500.00 0.00 192.08 61.58

001-22-520.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 1,260.00 1,260.00 0.00 108.19 91.41

001-22-520.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 8,665.00 8,665.00 0.00 2,375.03 72.59

001-22-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 22,950.00 40,950.00 1,705.03 9,375.97 72.94

001-22-520.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 49.28 95.07

001-22-520.48.55 FIRE PREVENTION 4,536.00 4,536.00 0.00 546.21 87.96

143



001-22-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 400.00 400.00 0.00 (84.96) 121.24

001-22-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 6,225.00 7,075.00 0.00 3,657.59 48.30

001-22-520.52.02 S.C.B.A. 1,850.00 1,850.00 0.00 (308.97) 116.70

001-22-520.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 2,505.00 2,505.00 1,888.22 (37.12) 26.10

001-22-520.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 810.03 19.00

001-22-520.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,355.64 9.62

001-22-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 2,450.00 2,450.00 0.00 (715.58) 129.21

001-22-520.52.70 MEDICAL 1,370.00 1,370.00 0.00 906.00 33.87

001-22-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 265.00 265.00 0.00 (270.00) 201.89

001-22-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 6,650.00 6,650.00 0.00 1,702.00 74.41

001-22-520.54.12 TRAINING MATERIALS 1,920.00 1,920.00 0.00 935.86 51.26

001-22-520.55.10 SHARED TRAINING 0.00 0.00 0.00 (390.00) 100.00

001-22-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 36,777.00 66,777.00 0.00 45,752.01 31.49

001-22-520.71.00 PRINCIPAL RETIRED 29,734.00 29,734.00 0.00 (1,590.47) 105.35

001-22-520.72.00 INTEREST EXPENSE 3,267.00 3,267.00 0.00 1,591.15 51.30

001-22-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 11,537.00 11,537.00 0.00 5,904.16 48.82

326,065.00 374,915.00 3,593.25 145,563.69 60.22

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 29 CODE ENFORCEMENT

001-29-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 14,054.00 14,054.00 0.00 4,463.27 68.24

001-29-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 1,075.00 1,075.00 0.00 346.23 67.79

001-29-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 1,521.00 1,521.00 0.00 591.45 61.11

001-29-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00

001-29-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00

001-29-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 45.00 45.00 0.00 31.07 30.96

001-29-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 35.00 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.00

001-29-520.45.03 AUTO INSURANCE 124.00 124.00 0.00 124.00 0.00

001-29-520.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00

001-29-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00

001-29-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 50.00 50.00 0.00 (169.49) 438.98

001-29-520.51.10 POSTAGE 350.00 350.00 0.00 248.47 29.01

001-29-520.51.20 RECORDING COSTS 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.00

001-29-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 75.00 75.00 0.00 (233.49) 411.32

144



001-29-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00

001-29-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 75.00 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00

18,174.00 18,174.00 0.00 6,281.51 65.44

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS

001-41-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 191,283.00 191,283.00 0.00 65,096.54 65.97

001-41-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 3,188.47 20.29

001-41-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 14,633.00 14,633.00 0.00 4,705.53 67.84

001-41-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 20,697.00 20,697.00 0.00 7,508.13 63.72

001-41-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 21,840.00 21,840.00 0.00 5,667.42 74.05

001-41-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 236.00 236.00 0.00 22.10 90.64

001-41-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00

001-41-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,750.00 2,750.00 0.00 2,750.00 0.00

001-41-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 612.00 612.00 0.00 405.97 33.67

001-41-530.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00

001-41-530.34.91 LANDSCAPING 6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00 1,568.09 75.88

001-41-530.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 200.00 200.00 0.00 152.38 23.81

001-41-530.43.10 ELECTRICITY 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 2,385.44 52.29

001-41-530.43.15 ELECTRIC -  WILLIAMS BUILDING 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

001-41-530.43.50 DUMP SERVICE 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00

001-41-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 (1,121.59) 137.39

001-41-530.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 (148.54) 105.94

001-41-530.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 9,500.00 9,500.00 0.00 3,909.54 58.85

001-41-530.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 6,500.00 6,500.00 3,600.00 (10,404.84) 204.69

001-41-530.46.31 MAINTENANCE OLD TOWN HALL 500.00 500.00 0.00 94.17 81.17

001-41-530.46.32 RYCKMAN HOUSE 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

001-41-530.46.34 MAINTENANCE RYCKMAN PARK 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

001-41-530.46.35 PIER MAINTENANCE 500.00 500.00 0.00 (75.01) 115.00

001-41-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 (7,177.37) 202.53

001-41-530.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 2,275.00 35.00

001-41-530.52.00 UNIFORMS 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 1,435.76 31.63

001-41-530.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 220.85 77.92

001-41-530.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 832.55 79.19

145



001-41-530.52.25 TOOL RENTALS 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 1,332.29 61.93

001-41-530.52.50 GAS & OIL 3,600.00 3,600.00 0.00 1,002.08 72.16

001-41-530.53.10 STREET REPAIR 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00 935.87 87.52

001-41-530.53.15 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00

001-41-530.53.20 STREET SIGNS 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 4,379.52 56.20

001-41-530.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,062.00 29.20

001-41-530.57.25 WELDING 500.00 500.00 0.00 268.55 46.29

001-41-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 46,000.00 46,000.00 0.00 8,340.35 81.87

410,651.00 411,151.00 3,600.00 130,811.25 67.31

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 72 PARKS & RECREATION

001-72-570.48.10 FOUNDER'S DAY 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 (680.68) 111.34

001-72-570.48.50 MOVIES IN THE PARK 1,800.00 1,800.00 0.00 837.06 53.50

001-72-570.48.52 FOURTH OF JULY 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 500.00 50.00

001-72-570.48.53 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS PARK 1,500.00 1,733.00 0.00 (750.84) 143.33

001-72-570.48.60 EASTER EGG HUNT 50.00 50.00 0.00 (221.78) 543.56

001-72-570.48.90 RECREATION PROGRAMS 13,000.00 13,000.00 0.00 9,259.62 28.77

001-72-570.63.01 TENNIS COURT EXPEDITURES 350.00 350.00 0.00 364.00 (4.00)

001-72-570.63.02 BBALL & VBALL COURTS 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00

001-72-570.63.05 BOCCE COURT EXPENDITURES 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00

001-72-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 13,437.20 0.00 0.00 100.00

24,100.00 37,770.20 0.00 9,707.38 74.30

Fund: 125 BUILDING DEPT

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 24 PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS

125-24-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 75,116.00 77,369.00 0.00 30,663.63 60.37

125-24-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 817.52 817.52 0.00 716.17 12.40

125-24-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 5,746.00 5,801.04 0.00 2,486.07 57.14

125-24-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 7,512.00 7,512.00 0.00 2,663.88 64.54

125-24-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 18,144.00 18,400.44 0.00 1,687.39 90.83

125-24-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 136.00 0.00 20.59 84.86
146



125-24-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 240.00 240.00 0.00 166.85 30.48

125-24-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 55,703.54 112,320.00 0.00 51,989.60 53.71

125-24-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 266.00 400.00 0.00 (3,396.00) 949.00

125-24-520.51.10 POSTAGE 0.00 30.00 0.00 30.00 0.00

125-24-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 0.00 100.00 0.00 (12.97) 112.97

125-24-520.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 46.91 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00

125-24-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

125-24-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 80.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

163,902.97 223,226.00 0.00 87,115.21 60.97

Fund: 172 OCEAN PARK PARKING FUND

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Amended Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

Department: 75 TOWN PARKS

172-75-575.31.02 LIFEGUARD CONTRACT 19,950.00 19,950.00 0.00 12,043.66 39.63

172-75-575.32.90 BANKING FEES 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 (794.86) 139.74

172-75-575.34.10 JANITORIAL CLEANING 1,800.00 1,800.00 0.00 450.00 75.00

172-75-575.34.91 LANDSCAPING 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,715.11 5.70

172-75-575.41.10 IPS COMMUNICATIONS FEE 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 (889.30) 174.11

172-75-575.43.10 ELECTRICITY 1,584.00 1,584.00 0.00 173.67 89.04

172-75-575.43.20 WATER & SEWER 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 473.11 68.46

172-75-575.43.50 DUMP SERVICE 660.00 660.00 0.00 660.00 0.00

172-75-575.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 (87.73) 108.77

172-75-575.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00 (877.00) 100.00

172-75-575.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00

172-75-575.46.31 BUILDING MAINT RESTROOMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 (103.78) 100.00

172-75-575.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 1,800.00 1,800.00 0.00 (3,236.35) 279.80

172-75-575.46.41 MOWING CONTRACT 11,205.00 11,205.00 0.00 8,379.31 25.22

172-75-575.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00

172-75-575.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 350.00 350.00 0.00 344.70 1.51

172-75-575.52.25 TOOL RENTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 (2,725.81) 100.00

172-75-575.53.15 PARKING LOT REPAIRS 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 2,488.26 17.06

147



172-75-575.53.20 SIGNS 300.00 300.00 0.00 (4.89) 101.63

172-75-575.63.03 VOLLEYBALL COURT 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00

172-75-575.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 (8,738.92) 100.00

172-75-764.10.00 Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.00

55,669.00 55,669.00 0.00 16,589.18 70.20

Report Totals:

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS 3,329,475.97 3,500,382.00 7,193.25 1,153,881.98

148



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE FOR TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH                                                                      

Balance As Of 05/31/2022                                                                                        

Fund: 001 GENERAL FUND

Account Category: Revenues

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

001-00-311.00.00 AD VALOREM TAXES 2,188,884.00 41,421.29 98.11

001-00-312.41.00 LOCAL OPTION COUNTY GAS TAX 66,200.00 4,497.05 93.21

001-00-314.10.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX FPL 269,000.00 123,780.24 53.99

001-00-314.30.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX WATER 58,000.00 22,776.83 60.73

001-00-314.40.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX GAS 0.00 (61.22) 100.00

001-00-314.40.10 UTILTIY GAS TAX AMERIGAS 8,000.00 2,589.05 67.64

001-00-314.40.20 UTILITY GAS TAX SUBURBAN 1,100.00 458.83 58.29

001-00-314.40.30 UTILTIY GAS TAX FERRELL 2,100.00 (59.74) 102.84

001-00-314.40.40 UTILITY GAS TAX SAM'S GAS 0.00 (105.76) 100.00

001-00-315.00.00 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE TAX 130,000.00 61,400.08 52.77

001-00-316.00.00 OCCP. LIC 6,300.00 (4,966.98) 178.84

001-00-323.10.00 FRANCHISE FEES FPL 192,000.00 99,839.37 48.00

001-00-323.70.00 FRANCHISE FEES SOLID WASTE 39,000.00 12,126.34 68.91

001-00-323.70.10 SOLID WASTE COMMERCIAL 12,000.00 2,717.77 77.35

001-00-329.14.00 INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS 0.00 (32.30) 100.00

001-00-329.20.00 BONFIRE PERMIT 0.00 (300.00) 100.00

001-00-334.20.10 CARES ACT PD 0.00 (36,681.90) 100.00

001-00-334.40.00 FMIT SAFETY GRANT 5,000.00 2,663.00 46.74

001-00-335.12.00 STATE REVENUE SHARING PROCEEDS 55,000.00 (3,234.04) 105.88

001-00-335.15.00 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSES 4,100.00 126.80 96.91

001-00-335.18.00 HALF CENT SALES TAX LOCAL GOV 184,000.00 71,417.64 61.19

001-00-342.20.00 SAFETY INSPECT FEE VAC RENTAL 850.00 255.00 70.00

001-00-342.20.10 SAFETY RENEWAL-VAC RENTALS 850.00 800.00 5.88

001-00-345.10.00 VAC RENTAL APP FEE-INITITAL 5,000.00 1,075.00 78.50

001-00-345.10.10 VAC RENEWAL FEE - RENTALS 5,000.00 3,100.00 38.00

001-00-361.10.00 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 1,275.00 (491.73) 138.57

001-00-366.21.00 DONATIONS 100.00 100.00 0.00

001-00-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 500.00 (1,363.22) 372.64

001-00-369.00.49 INSURANCE RECOVERY 0.00 (317.64) 100.00

3,234,259.00 403,529.76 87.52

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 13 FINANCE

001-13-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 (35.00) 100.00

0.00 (35.00) 100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMENT

001-21-312.52.00 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 40,536.00 40,536.00 0.00

149



001-21-337.20.00 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 57,000.00 10,500.00 81.58

001-21-337.25.01 STATE LE COMPUTER GRANT 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00

001-21-347.90.01 SPECIAL EVENTS 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00

001-21-351.00.00 FINES - LAW ENFORCEMENT 8,000.00 2,656.28 66.80

001-21-351.13.00 PARKING TICKETS 8,000.00 7,300.00 8.75

001-21-351.13.10 ACCIDENT REPORT 100.00 (0.50) 100.50

001-21-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 (52.00) 100.00

116,136.00 63,439.78 45.37

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 22 FIRE CONTROL

001-22-322.30.00 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES 4,500.00 1,500.00 66.67

001-22-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 (600.00) 100.00

001-22-369.55.10 SHARED TRAINING 0.00 (1,608.00) 100.00

4,500.00 (708.00) 115.73

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 29 CODE ENFORCEMENT

001-29-359.00.00 OTHER FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,000.00 675.00 32.50

1,000.00 675.00 32.50

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS

001-41-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 (500.00) 100.00

0.00 (500.00) 100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 72 PARKS & RECREATION

001-72-347.41.00 FOUNDER'S DAY 8,000.00 1,830.00 77.13

001-72-347.50.00 FACILITY RENTALS 13,000.00 13,000.00 0.00

001-72-366.47.03 COMMUNITY CENTER DONATIONS 0.00 (150.00) 100.00

21,000.00 14,680.00 30.10

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 75 TOWN PARKS

001-75-342.10.00 PARKING TICKET REVENUE 3,000.00 (3,500.00) 216.67

001-75-344.50.00 PARKING METER REVENUE 37,008.00 (18,082.27) 148.86

001-75-344.50.10 PARK PASS REVENUE 0.00 (1,950.00) 100.00

001-75-347.50.00 FACILITY RENTALS 0.00 (4,004.80) 100.00

40,008.00 (27,537.07) 168.83

  Revenues 3,416,903.00 453,544.47 86.73

Fund: 125 BUILDING DEPT Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

150



Department: 24 PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS

125-24-322.00.00 BUILDING PERMITS 152,000.00 54,261.78 64.30

125-24-322.10.00 ZONING PLAN REVIEW 2,000.00 1,775.00 11.25

125-24-322.10.10 SITE PLAN REVIEW P&Z 1,500.00 (5,600.00) 473.33

125-24-322.20.00 BUILDING PLAN REVIEW 4,600.00 (2,298.71) 149.97

125-24-322.31.00 ADVERTISING COSTS 250.00 250.00 0.00

125-24-322.31.20 P&Z ADVERTISING 100.00 100.00 0.00

125-24-329.00.00 OTHER LICENSES, FEES & PERMITS 700.00 (1,285.00) 283.57

125-24-329.00.10 BOA VARIANCE FEES 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00

125-24-354.00.00 LOCAL ORDINANCE VIOLATION 2,000.00 (1,725.22) 186.26

164,150.00 46,477.85 71.69

Fund: 172 OCEAN PARK PARKING FUND Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Available % Bdgt

Department: 75 TOWN PARKS

172-75-342.10.00 PARKING TICKET REVENUE 3,000.00 (7,185.00) 339.50

172-75-344.50.00 PARKING METER REVENUE 74,400.00 15,338.89 79.38

77,400.00 8,153.89 89.47

Report Totals:

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 3,658,453.00 508,176.21

151



MAY 2022 ACTION ITEMS 

 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Cocoa Beach Ordinance related 

to Drown Zero Stations 

5/18/2022 6/15/2022  Mayor Hoover Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/18/2022 Added to Action Items 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research grant funding 

opportunities for stormwater 

projects 

3/15/2022 8/17/2022  Commissioner 

Runte  

Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/18/2022 Town Manager spoke with Scott from B.S.E, and she found two grants that just opened up. 

Mayor Hoover recommended reaching out to IRL to get feedback from their team of grant writers. 

3/15/2022 Added to Action Items   

ITEM  OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research permanent tree 

lighting (up lighting) along Ocean 

Ave, nicer street signs & new 

trash cans 

2/16/2022 6/15/2022  Commissioner 

Walker 

Town Manager/Public Works 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/18/2022 PW Director will buy two different types of lights to try them out.   

4/20/2022 PW Supervisor investigating up lighting on Ocean Ave in front of Ryckman Park sidewalk.  Has 

decorative street poles for Commission to review for purchase.  

2/16/2022 Added to Action Items  - Update in March  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE  CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 
152



MAY 2022 ACTION ITEMS 

 

Evaluate audio equipment in the 

Community Center 

1/17/2022 6/15/2022  Mayor Hoover Town Clerk 

Date  Directions/Notes 

5/18/2022 Mayor requested fewer cords, possibly a television, and microphones for each seat 

2/16/2022 Estimate for audio replacement discussed. The Commission would like to get an estimate on two large-

screen TV monitors. Research what company IHB uses. Contact RB Communications.   

1/17/2022 Action Item Created 

 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE  CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

S.E.A. PROJECT 2/17/2021 6/15/2022  Mayor Hoover Town Manager 

Date Directions/Notes 

5/18/2022 Town Manager – additional parking spots are done, planting in Bicentennial Park was done, new poles 

along Ocean Ave are in the works.  The next big-ticket item is underground retention for stormwater 

Mayor Hoover – FDOT will be doing their portion of A1A fiscal year 2026. 

Schedule a public workshop in July. 

04/20/2022 Town will have a tent during Founders Day to discuss the S.E.A. Vision and get feedback from the 

residents.  Waiting on estimates for new Town signs from Fast Signs.  Flowers planted at the very north 

end of Bi-Centennial.  Flowers also planted around Ryckman House.  Established 4 more spaces for golf 

cart parking.   

2/16/2022 Town Manager Mascaro has met with the resident volunteer and they are currently working on the 

plan – she will provide another update again in March. Mayor Hoover suggested researching FDOT 

funding for Bicentennial Park and making it an entrance to the Town with a more impressive sign.  

1/17/2022 Vision statement was approved. An update will be given at February RTCM. 

12/15/2021 Update at January RTCM with Dix Height information.  

10/20/2021 Discussed during meeting in depth. Update at Nov. RTCM 

9/15/21 Currently working on RFP for gardening services and will present it at next RTCM as an agenda item. 

TM has not been able to make contact with Susan Hall  

8/18/2021 Added landscaping of Parks to Action item – and discussed RFP for landscaping services  

153



MAY 2022 ACTION ITEMS 

 

 

7/21/2021 Check in with Susan (include VM Barton) and update at August RTCM 

 

6/16/2021 Commission will no longer pursue FDOT grant but will continue research of other funding and grants. 

  

4/21/2021 Commission approved increasing payment. Grant will be awarded in June. Update July RTCM 

 

3/17/2021 VM Barton researched FDOT landscape grant. Commission approved $5,000 to begin landscape design 

process with an architectural designer. Discuss at April TCW and April RTCM. 

 

2/17/2021 Explore grants, etc. Discuss at TCW on March 3, 2021 

 

12/2/2020 

Mayor Hoover suggested they do the necessary research and reach out to landlords and business 

owners, starting with the area east of the traffic light on both sides of the road north and south – and 

then meet again to discuss in February. Plan for workshops with business owners and PNZ involvement 

. 

 

12/16/2020 

Commissioner Walters requested the Town research a better microphone system, including the option 

of wireless microphones. He feels the sound quality of the current microphones is very poor. Dual timers 

were also requested by the Commission (we have one and need one more). 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research golf cart/low-speed 

vehicle certification process and 

the idea of a beachside “g-pass” 

2/16/2022 6/15/2022  Commission Town Manager 

5/18/2022 Ordinance and the Interlocal Agreement next month 

4/14/2022 TM and Chief Griswold set meeting with Indialantic’s TM and Police Chief to discuss Interlocal 

Agreement.  Meeting was rescheduled for May due to time conflict. 

2/16/2022 Added to Action Items - Vice Mayor Joyce Barton will discuss the issue at the SBC meeting and share 

insight at March RTCM. Town Manager will obtain Indialantic’s written certification process.   

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 154



MAY 2022 ACTION ITEMS 

 

Research the term multi-

generational in terms of building 

code and its use in other 

municipalities, aka “Granny 

Suites.” 

1/17/2022 5/18/2022  Commission  Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/18/2022 Town Manager – Came from PNZ to define kitchen.  Our code prohibits two kitchens. 

Mayor Hoover requested an agenda item next month to review what in our code would prohibit this 

4/20/2022 Provide definition of multi-generational, how County manages Granny Suites and what other towns 

and cities are doing to accommodate the return of multi-generational living. 

2/16/2022 Town Attorney and Town Manager will discuss “granny suites” and bring their findings to the next 

RTCM.  

1/17/2022 The Town Commission directed the Town Manager to research the use of the term multi-generational 

in relation to “granny suites.” 

7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 PWD will ask FDOT if subcontractor (who is restriping cross walks) can also paint stanchions 

5/19/2021 PWD update at June RTCM 

 

 

 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research Charging Stations 11/20/20 6/15/2022  Simmons Town Manager/PWD 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 TM said new charging companies are coming out and installing their own stations with incentives and it 

may be a good idea to wait and see what they are. Rapid charge is 3-4 times the cost. 

155



MAY 2022 ACTION ITEMS 

 

10/20/2021 Commissioner Runte reached out to two vendors he works with update Nov. 2021 

9/15/2021 TM does not have an update. Commissioner Runte explained the companies are hard to reach or non-

responsive- still working on it. Update next month 

8/18/2021 Update at September RTCM 

7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 Follow up on “Electrify” a company that leases charging stations 

5/19/2021 Update at June RTCM 

4/21/2021 Town Manager was given a list by Commissioner Runte to evaluate and update again at May RTCM. 

1/20/2021 Update again at April RTCM 

12/16/2020 Town Manager Mascaro said there is a lot to understand about these charging stations that effect cost 

and what’s included. Update again at January 2021 RTCM. 

11/18/2020 Commission advised to keep this item open until the stations are installed 

10/21/2020 Commission approved cost to replace breaker box and TM to get vendor contacts from Comm. Runte 

8/19/2020 PWS said breaker box must be replaced at cost of $3,000-$4,000.Commission asked TM to find 

install/generic cost for Sept RTCM. 

 

7/15/2020 

TM shared that the offer from Tesla no longer available, they cost $500. TM is looking at other options 

and will come back in August with information. Commission asked TM to look for similar offers and/or 

grants as Tesla was offering. 

6/17/2020 Electricians scheduled Wed. Parking spot for bikes and two for charging stations. Update July RTCM 

3/18/2020 Commission suggested TM get with Tesla to see what they may offer - including getting one at no cost. 

Tobe discussed again at May TCW. 

6/3/2020 Commission asked TM to contact Tesla to see what they have to offer. Update June RTCM. 

 

 

156



 

 

 

 

City of Cocoa Beach Commission 
Agenda Item Summary (Adopted on January 2014) 

1. DEPARTMENT MAKING REQUEST/NAME:  
 
James P. McKnight, City Manager 
 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
February 6, 2020 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION:  
 

“I move to authorize Staff to sign the three years Agreement with Cocoa Beach Rotary for the Drown Zero 
Project.”  

 
 

4. AGENDA 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION  
CONSENT  
SITE PLAN CONSENT  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
NEW BUSINESS  
 

5. IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES   NO  IF NO, CITY ACTION REQUIRED    N/A 
 
DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

 
  
Cocoa Beach Rotary Foundation Inc., the Permittee, desires to conduct a public service project, 
involving the placement of Drown Zero equipment, at specific locations of the City’s Ocean Beach.  
The Permittee accepts any and all responsibility and liability related with such project.  The City and 
Cocoa Beach Rotary agree to each supply staff to install the Drown Zero equipment.  The City also 
agrees that the Beach Rangers will monitor Drown Zero equipment for purposes of determining if the 
equipment is missing, needs repair or is damaged.  The City and Cocoa Beach Rotary agree to enter 
into a three year agreement with two (2), one (1) year extensions. 
  

Attachment: Rotary License Agreement  

157



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 1 of 10  

 
 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT is made upon the signing of the Parties by and 
between the City of Cocoa Beach, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City, and the 
Cocoa Beach Rotary Foundation, Inc., a Florida non-profit corporation, hereinafter referred 
to as "Permittee". The City and the Permittee are collectively referred to herein as 
"Parties". 

WHEREAS, Permittee desires to conduct a public service project involving the 
placement of Drown Zero equipment at specific locations on the City's Ocean Beach; and 

WHEREAS, Permittee has requested that the City allow Permittee to place such 
Drown Zero equipment at specific location on the City's Ocean Beach; and 

WHEREAS, Permittee understands and agrees that the Drown Zero Project is a 
project of the Permittee, and not a project of the City, and that the Permittee accepts any 
all responsibility and liability related to such project, including, but not limited to personal 
injury, death, property damages, and any and all financial matters relating in any way to 
the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Permittee has agreed that the Permittee's rescue stations, installed 
in accordance with this License Agreement, will meet or exceed the standards and 
conditions as more specifically set forth in Exhibit A of this License Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Permittee and the City agree that the City and the Permittee will 
each supply people to perform the installation of the Drown Zero Equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees that Beach Rangers will make an effort to monitor the 
Drown Zero equipment during the term of this Agreement for purposes of determining if 
any equipment is missing, needs repair, or is damaged; and 

WHEREAS, Permittee shall provide an IRS determination letter to the City 
demonstrating non-profit/not for profit status prior to execution of this License Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 
City and Permittee agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1- REPRESENTATIONS 

The representations set forth hereinabove in the "Whereas" provisions are hereby 
acknowledged and agreed to by the Parties. 

ARTICLE 2 - TERM OF LICENSE AGREEMENT 

The term for this agreement shall be three (3) years upon agreement of the parties. 
The License Agreement may be extended for two (2), one (1) year terms with notification thirty 
(30) days prior to expiration.  

158



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 2 of 10  

 
An annual evaluation of the program shall be conducted by the City and the Permittee. 
This evaluation shall be concluded at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the 
initial term hereof. 

If the evaluation is considered to be positive, an extension of this Agreement may be 
considered by both of the Parties. The City, at its sole discretion, shall determine the 
definition of "positive evaluation" in the context of renewal and/or extension terms of this 
License Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 - LICENSE AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION 

Administration of this License Agreement shall be under the general direction of the City 
Manager or designee, who shall act as the City's representative during the performance of 
this License Agreement.  

ARTICLE 4 - INSURANCE , PERMITS & LICENSES 

In the performance of this License Agreement, Permittee agrees to comply with all Federal, 
State, and Local laws and regulations now in effect, or hereinafter enacted during the term 
of this License Agreement that are applicable to Permittee, its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors, with respect to all the matters related in any way to this License Agreement 
and/or provided relating to the areas licensed to Permittee under this License Agreement. 

The Permittee and any and all subcontractors shall maintain in full force and effect during 
the life of the License Agreement, Worker's Compensation insurance covering all 
employees in performance of work under the License Agreement. Permittee shall 
indemnify and save the City harmless for any damage resulting to it for failure of  
Permittee, or any subcontractors to take out or maintain such insurance. 

The following are required types and minimum limits of insurance coverage that the 
Permittee agrees to maintain during the term of this License Agreement. The policies of 
insurance by Permittee  shall be separate and shall each name the City as an additionally 
named insured. 

COVERAGE MINIMUM LIMITS 
 
General Liability: $1,000,000 per incident 
Auto Liability: $500,000 per person/incident 
Professional Liability: $1,000,000 
Worker’s Compensation: Statutory 
 
ARTICLE 5- INDEMNIFICATION  

159



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 3 of 10  

 

For other additional consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Permittee shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from and against 
all claims, demands, disputes, damages, costs, expenses (to include attorneys' fees 
whether or not litigation is necessary and if necessary, both at trial and on appeal), incurred 
by the City as a result, directly or indirectly, of the anything to do with this License 
Agreement or the Permitee’s project, or any other related matter. 

The Permittee further agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its agents, 
servants and employees from and against any claim, demand or cause of action of 
whatsoever kind or nature arising out of any conduct or misconduct of the Permittee, not 
included in the paragraph above and for which the City, its agents, servants or employees 
are alleged to be liable. 

ARTICLE 6- SAFETY 

Precautions shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons (including City 
employees) and property. The safety provisions of all applicable laws, regulations and 
codes shall be observed. Hazards arising from the use of vehicles, machinery, and 
equipment shall be guarded or eliminated with the highest accepted standards of safety. 
The Permittee, and any subcontractor, shall comply fully with requirements of the 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSHA) and any other pertinent Federal, State, or Local 
Statutes, rules or regulations. The Permittee, any subcontractors, shall bear full 
responsibility for payment of any fines or other punishments resulting from violation of any 
such statutes, rules or regulations. 

ARTICLE 7-SALES TAX 

The City is exempt from sales tax. The Permittee, as applicable, and as required by the 
laws and statutes of the state and its political subdivisions shall pay all state and local sales 
and use taxes. The Permittee may not use the City's tax exemption in any of its activities. 

ARTICLE 8 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

The Permittee agrees that it is an Independent Contractor with respect to all aspects of this 
License Agreement, and not an employee, agent or servant of the City. All persons 
engaged in any of the work or services performed shall at all times, and in all places, be 
subject to the Permittee's sole discretion, supervision, and control. The Permittee shall  
exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the 
work; the City's interest is in the results obtained. Nothing in this agreement  shall be 
considered to create the relationship of employer and employee between the parties. 

ARTICLE 9 - SUBCONTRACTORS 

No part of this License Agreement shall be sublet without the prior express written 
approval of the City. If the Permittee shall sublet any portion of this License Agreement, 
the Permittee shall be fully responsible to the City for acts and omissions of a 
subcontractor and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the subcontractor, as 
the Permittee is for its own acts and omissions of persons employed directly or indirectly 

160



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 4 of 10  

by the Permittee. The subcontractor is subject to the same contractual provisions as is the 
Permittee under this License Agreement, including but not limited to insurance 
requirements, records maintenance and audit requirements. 

ARTICLE 10 - SEVERABILITY 

No inspection by the City, nor any action whatsoever by the City shall operate as a waiver 
of (1) any provision of this License Agreement, (2) the right to have it fully performed, (3) 
any power herein reserved to the City, or (4) any right to damages under this License 
Agreement. No waiver of any breach of this License Agreement shall be held to be a 
waiver of any other breach. 

ARTICLE 11 - ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 

The City and the Permittee agree that this License Agreement sets forth the entire 
agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other 
than those slated herein. 

ARTICLE 12 - AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS 

Except as provided herein, any cardinal change in the terms and conditions set forth in this 
License Agreement must be mutually agreed to by both the City and the Permittee, and 
may be implemented only after this agreement has been amended in writing. 

ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

All notices required in this License Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and if sent to the City, shall be mailed to: 

Original: Loredana Kalaghchy, City Clerk  
Copy: James P. McKnight, City Manager 
City of Cocoa Beach 
P.O. Box 322430 
Cocoa Beach, FL 32932-2430 
 
Notices sent to the Permittee shall be mailed to: 

Original:  Cocoa Beach Rotary Foundation, Inc. 
John Alexander 
Cocoa Beach Rotary Foundation, Inc 
P.O. Box 321344 
Cocoa Beach, FL 32932 

 
 

161



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 5 of 10  

 
ARTICLE 14 - TERMINATION 

This agreement may be terminated by either party, with or without cause with thirty (30) 
days' notice. 

 

ARTICLE 15 - EXCLUSIVITY 

This is not an exclusive License Agreement, The City may, at its sole discretion, contract 
with other entities for matters similar to that being done by the Permittee. 

ARTICLE 16 - REMEDIES 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of 
Florida, and the rights of the parties hereto shall be construed and be subject to the laws of 
the State of Florida. The parties hereby waive the right to a trial by jury in any action, 
proceeding or counterclaim brought or filed by either of them against the other. Venue for 
any court action arising out of this agreement shall be in Brevard County, Florida. 

No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other 
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition  to 
every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by 
statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power or 
remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof 
 

ARTICLE 17 - ENFORCEMENT COSTS 
 
If any legal action or other proceeding is brought by the City for the enforcement of this 
License Agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation 
in connection with any provisions of this License Agreement, the City shall be entitled to 
recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and all expenses (including taxes) even if 
not taxable as court costs (including, without limitation, all such fees, costs and expenses 
incident to appeals), incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to 
which such party or parties may be entitled. 
 
ARTICLE 18 - UNAUTHORIZED ALIEN WORKERS: 
 
The City of Cocoa Beach will not intentionally award licenses or agreements to any person 
or entity who knowingly employs unauthorized alien workers, constituting a violation of the 
employment provisions contained in 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a(e)(Section 274A(e) of the 
Immigration and Nationality Act ("INA"). The CITY shall consider the employment by the 
Permittee of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A (e) of the INA to be grounds 
for the immediate unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by the City. 
  

162



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 6 of 10  

ARTICLE 19 - PUBLIC RECORDS COMPLIANCE INDEMNIFICATION: 
 
Permittee agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless against any and all claims, 
damage awards, and causes of action arising from the Permittee's failure to comply with 
the public records disclosure requirements of Section 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, or by 
Permittee's failure to maintain public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from the public records disclosure requirements, including, but not limited to, any third 
party claims or awards for attorneys' fees and costs arising therefrom. Permittee authorizes 
the City to seek declaratory, injunctive, or other appropriate relief against Permittee in 
Brevard County Circuit Court on an expedited basis to enforce the requirements of this 
section. 
 

ARTICLE 20 - COMPLIANCE/CONSISTENCY WITH F.S.768.28: 
 
Any indemnification by City specified in the Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver 
of City's sovereign immunity, and shall be limited to such indemnification and liability limits 
consistent with the requirements of Section 768.28, Fla. Stat. and subject to the procedural 
requirements set forth therein. Any other purported indemnification by City in the 
Agreement in derogation hereof shall be void and of no force or effect. 
 

ARTICLE 21 - VENUE AND JURISDICTION: 
 
Notwithstanding any of other provision to the contrary, this Agreement and the parties' 
actions under this Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the 
state of Florida, without reference to conflict of law principles. As a material condition of 
this Agreement, each Party hereby irrevocably and unconditionally: i) consents  to submit 
and does submit to the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court in and for Brevard County, Florida 
for any actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 21 - PUBLIC RECORDS COMPLIANCE: 
 
The Permittee agrees that, to the extent that either of them may "act on behalf' of the City 
within the meaning of Section 119.071(1)(a), Florida Statutes relating to this Agreement, it 
shall: 
(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service. 
(b) Upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, provide the public 

agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this 
chapter or as otherwise provided by law. 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the 
duration of the License Agreement term and following completion of the Agreement if 
the Permittee or Drown Zero, LLC does not transfer the records to the public agency. 

(d) Upon completion of the License Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all 
public records in possession of the Permittee of the Permittee can keep and maintain 
public records required by the public agency to perform the service. If the Permittee or 

163



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 7 of 10  

Permitee transfers all public records to the public agency upon completion of the 
License Agreement, the Permittee shall destroy any duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the 
Permittee keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the License 
Agreement, the Permittee shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon 
request from the City's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with 
the information technology systems of the City. 

(e) Pursuant to Section 119.0701(2)(a), Fla. Stat., if the Permitee, has questions regarding 
the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the contractor's duty to provide public 
records relating to this contract, contact the Custodian of Public Records at: Cocoa 
Beach City Hall, First Floor, 2 S. Orlando Ave.,P.0. Box 322430, Cocoa Beach, Fl 32932-
2430. 321-868-3286. Cityclerk@cityofcocoabeach.com 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License Agreement as of the day and year first above 
written 
 
CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
 
_________________________________ 
James P. McKnight, City Manager, City of Cocoa Beach 
 
Attest By: 
 
_________________________________ 
Loredana Kalaghchy, MMC, City Clerk, City of Cocoa Beach  
 
Approved as to form and legality 
 
_______________________________ 
Gretchen R.H. Becky Vose,  City Attorney  
 
Date:__________________________ 
 
 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION, INC 
 
________________________________ 
John Alexander, Cocoa Beach Rotary Foundation, Inc,,  
P.O.Box 321344 
Cocoa Beach, Fl. 32932-000 
 
Date:____________________________  

164

mailto:Cityclerk@cityofcocoabeach.com


CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 8 of 10  

 

EXHIBIT A 

The Permitee Drown Zero Stations shall be located at locations determined by the City of 
Cocoa Beach, within the incorporated areas of the City of Cocoa Beach. 

The location(s) of the stations and the number of stations shall be set as follows: 
 

165



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 9 of 10  

Station 1:Harding Ave  
Station 2:Barlow Ave  
Station 3:Young Ave  
Station 4:Hendry Ave  
Station 5:Meade Ave  
Station 6:Pulsipher Ave  
Station 7:Winslow Ave  
Station 8:California Ave  
Station 9:Leon Lane  
Station 10:Osceloa Lane  
Station 11:Gadsden Lane  
Station 12:Shepard Park N  
Station 13:Shepard Park C  
Station 14:Shepard Park S  
Station 15:Marion Lane  
Station 16:Palm Lane 
Station 17:Flagler Lane  
Station 18:Fischer Park N  
Station 19: Fischer Park C  
Station 20:Tulip Lane  
Station 21:4th Street N  
Station 22:3rd Street N  
Station 23:2nd Street N  
Station 24:1st Street N 
Station 25:Minutemen Cswy N 
Station 26:Minutemen Cswy S 
Station 27:1st Street S 
Station 28:2nd Street S 
Station 29:3rd Street S 
Station 30:4th Street S 
Station 31:5th Street S 
Station 32:6th Street S  
Station 33:7th  Street S  
Station 34:8th  Street S  
Station 35:9th  Street S  
Station 36:10th  Street S  
Station 37:11th Street S  
Station 38:12th Street S  
Station 39:13th Street S  
Station 40:14th  Street S  
Station 41:15th  Street S  
Station 42:Surf Drive 
 
Permitee Stations (Drown Zero Stations ) shall be placed as designated by the City of 
Cocoa Beach. 
 
No equipment shall be placed in any location other than as set forth in this License 
Agreement. Permittee agrees to promptly remove any equipment placed in an 
unauthorized location. 

Each station shall be identified by an appropriate sign. Street end locations shall be 
identified clearly on both sides of the sign, or attachment thereto. 

Signs may be "adopted" by individuals, businesses, and not for profit enterprises at the 
discretion of Permittee. Recognition of this adoption may be given on the westward facing 

166



CITY OF COCOA BEACH 
COCOA BEACH ROTARY FOUNDATION INC. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR DROWN ZERO PROJECT 

Page 10 of 10  

side of the station. The sign will include the words "adopted by" and shall not exceed an 
area of 12 inches in height by 12 inches in width. 

Maintenance of the signs are the sole and complete responsibility of Permittee as their 
interests may appear. Immediate removal of all potentially airborne equipment on each 
station must take place upon announcement by the National Weather Service of a tropical 
cyclone threat to the City. Failure to maintain the signs with reasonable care and due 
diligence will be considered a material breach of the Agreement and cause for termination. 

This project is subject to current and continued compliance with the appropriate rules & 
regulations of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), Florida Wildlife 
Commission (FWC) and those agencies associated with environmental & marine life 
conservation. Placement of signs shall not interfere with any turtle nesting area. 

The City agrees that only as to the above listed locations, Licensee shall have the 
exclusive right to the placement of Permitee equipment or other life rescue equipment. 

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226


	220615 RTCM Agenda Packet.pdf (p.1-226)
	June Agenda Packet Cover Page.pdf (p.1)
	220615 RTCM Agenda.pdf (p.3-4)
	220601 STCM Minutes.pdf (p.5-7)
	220518 RTCM minutes.pdf (p.8-21)
	220420 RTCM minutes.pdf (p.22-37)
	309 Fifth PNZ June 2022_20220526112623.pdf (p.38-47)
	527 Sunset PNZ June 2022_20220601130703.pdf (p.48-83)
	Multigenerational Living-Kitchens.pdf (p.84-85)
	Multigenerational-CODE.pdf (p.86-95)
	Regular Town Commission June Agenda Item.pdf (p.96)
	Loggerhead Park Deed.pdf (p.97-98)
	BCPAO Property Details.pdf (p.99)
	Map View.pdf (p.100)
	Interlocal with Indialantic.pdf (p.101)
	Fire-Rescue Dispatch Interlocal Agreement Cover Memo Resolution 2022-03 (Amended by Town Attorney 3-11-2022)_.pdf (p.102-104)
	Landscape,hedge-wall changes.pdf (p.105)
	2022 Landscape.pdf (p.106-109)
	Hedge and wall ordinance.pdf (p.110-112)
	Team Building.pdf (p.113)
	Tourism Grant.pdf (p.114)
	Agenda Memo First Reading 2022-01.pdf (p.115)
	Draft Ordinance 2022-01 Low Speed Vehicles.pdf (p.116-122)
	June Mgrs Memo.pdf (p.123)
	Building Department Report May 2022.pdf (p.124)
	Building May Report.pdf (p.125-126)
	May 2022 pw activities.pdf (p.127)
	2022.05 Chief.pdf (p.128-129)
	2022 Monthly.pdf (p.130-132)
	2022.05 Hinchman.pdf (p.133)
	2022.05 Sadler.pdf (p.134)
	Finance Memo June Meeting.pdf (p.135-136)
	May 2022 Expenditures.pdf (p.137-156)
	May 2022 Revenues.pdf (p.157-161)
	June Meeting Action Items.pdf (p.162-166)
	ITEM G4-Drown Zero License Agreement Memo 2019-006 ADA.pdf (p.167)
	ITEM G4-Drown Zero Rotary License Agreement 2019-006 ADA.pdf (p.168-177)
	02-06-20.pdf (p.178-191)
	12-05-19.pdf (p.192-211)
	11-03-16.pdf (p.212-225)
	10-20-16.pdf (p.226-241)

	2022.05 Chief.pdf (p.227-228)

